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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 001-36559

Via Renewables, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 46-5453215
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

12140 Wickchester Ln, Suite 100
Houston, Texas 77079

(Address of principal executive offices)

(713) 600-2600
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Trading_Symbols(s) Name of exchange on which registered

8.75% Series A Fixed-to-Floating Rate

. VIASP The NASDAQ Global Select Market
Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, par value $0.01

per share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes No [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405
of this Chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files).
Yes No [J

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer 1
Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company [J

Emerging Growth Company [J

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial
accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. [
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes O No

There were 3,323,329 shares of Class A common stock, 4,000,000 shares of Class B common stock and 3,567,543 shares of Series A Preferred Stock outstanding as of July
30, 2024 October 29, 2024.
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INDEX TO QUARTERLY REPORT ON FORM 10-Q
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024

Page No.
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF JUNE SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND DECEMBER 31, 2023 (unaudited) 4
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE AND SIXNINE MONTHS ENDED
JUNE SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023 (unaudited) 6
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE THREE AND SIXNINE MONTHS ENDED
JUNE SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND 2023 (unaudited) 7
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE SIXNINE MONTHS ENDED JUNE SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 AND
2023 (unaudited) 11
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited) 12

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

PART ll. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
SIGNATURES

RREREBBEE
BRBBREBEE

Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (this “Report”) contains forward-looking statements that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are
beyond our control. These forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology including “may,”
“should,” “could,” “likely,” “will,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue,” “plan,” “intend,” “project,” or other similar words. Forward-looking statements
appear in a number of places in this Report. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, included in this Report are forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements include statements regarding the impacts of Winter Storm Uri, cash flow generation and liquidity, business strategy, prospects for growth
and acquisitions, outcomes of legal proceedings, the timing, availability, ability to pay and amount of cash dividends on our Series A Preferred Stock, future
operations, financial position, estimated revenues and losses, projected costs, prospects, plans, objectives, beliefs of management, availability and terms of capital,
competition, government regulation and general economic conditions. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are
reasonable, we cannot give any assurance that such expectations will prove correct.

The forward-looking statements in this Report are subject to risks and uncertainties. Important factors that could cause actual results to materially differ from those
projected in the forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:
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« the ultimate impact of the Winter Storm Uri, including future benefits or costs related to ERCOT market securitization efforts, and any corrective action
by the State of Texas, ERCOT, the Railroad Commission of Texas, or the Public Utility Commission of Texas;

« changes in commodity prices, the margins we achieve, and interest rates;

« the sufficiency of risk management and hedging policies and practices;

« the impact of extreme and unpredictable weather conditions, including hurricanes, heat waves and other natural disasters;

« federal, state and local regulations, including the industry’s ability to address or adapt to potentially restrictive new regulations that may be enacted by
public utility commissions;

« our ability to borrow funds and access credit markets;

¢ restrictions and covenants in our debt agreements and collateral requirements;

« credit risk with respect to suppliers and customers;

« our ability to acquire customers and actual attrition rates;

« changes in costs to acquire customers;

« accuracy of billing systems;

< our ability to successfully identify, complete, and efficiently integrate acquisitions into our operations;

« significant changes in, or new changes by, the independent system operators (“ISOs”) in the regions we operate;

« risks related to our recently completed Merger (as defined below) including the outcome of any legal proceedings, regulatory proceedings or
enforcement matters that may be instituted against us and others relating to the Merger Agreement or otherwise, the impact of the Merger on our
operations and the amount of the costs, fees, expenses and charges related to Merger;

* competition; and

« the “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q in “Item 1A —
Risk Factors” of this Report, and in our other public filings and press releases.

You should review the Risk Factors and other factors noted throughout or incorporated by reference in this Report that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those contained in any forward-looking statement. All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Report. Unless required by law,
we disclaim any obligation to publicly update or revise these statements whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. It is not possible for us to
predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors on the business or

the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements.

PART I. — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VIA RENEWABLES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share counts)
(unaudited)

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

September 30,
2024 December 31, 2023

Assets

Current assets:

Current assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $3,684 at June 30, 2024 and $4,496 at December 31, 2023
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $3,382 at September 30, 2024 and $4,496 at December 31, 2023

Accounts receivable—affiliates
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Inventory
Fair value of derivative assets, net
Customer acquisition costs, net
Customer relationships, net
Deposits
Deposits
Deposits
Renewable energy credit asset
Other current assets
Other current assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Fair value of derivative assets, net
Customer acquisition costs, net
Customer relationships, net
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities, Series A Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities, Series A Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities, Series A Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable—affiliates
Accrued liabilities
Renewable energy credit liability
Fair value of derivative liabilities, net
Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Fair value of derivative liabilities, net
Fair value of derivative liabilities, net
Fair value of derivative liabilities, net
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Total liabilities
Total liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Commitments and contingencies
(Note 12)

Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023
Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023
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Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31,

2023

Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31,

2023

Series A Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 20,000,000 shares authorized, 3,567,543 shares issued and outstanding at September 30, 2024 and December 31,

2023

Stockholders’ equity:

Stockholders’ equity:

Stockholders’ equity:

Common Stock:

Common Stock:

Common Stock:

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares issued
and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares issued
and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares issued
and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 60,000,000 shares authorized, 4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at

June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at September 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares

issued and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at September 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares

issued and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class A common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized, 3,323,329 shares outstanding at September 30, 2024 and 3,261,620 shares

issued and 3,232,701 shares outstanding at December 31, 2023

Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 60,000,000 shares authorized, 4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at

September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Additional paid-in capital

Additional paid-in capital

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost, 0 and 28,918 shares at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Treasury stock, at cost, 0 and 28,918 shares at September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2024 2023 2024
Revenues:
Revenues:
Revenues:

Total stockholders’ equity
Non-controlling interest in Spark HoldCo, LLC

Total equity

Total liabilities, Series A Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

VIA RENEWABLES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)
(unaudited)

Retail revenues

Retail revenues

Retail revenues
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Net asset optimization expense
Other revenue
Total Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
General and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses
Operating income
Other (expense):
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest and other income
Total other expenses
Income before income tax expense
Income tax expense
Net income
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Less: Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. stockholders
Less: Dividend on Series A Preferred Stock
Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. per share of Class A common stock
Basic
Basic
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding
Basic
Basic
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

VIA RENEWABLES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
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Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at December 31, 2023
Balance at December 31, 2023

Stock based compensation

Stock based compensation

Stock based compensation

Restricted stock unit vesting

Restricted stock unit vesting

Restricted stock unit vesting

Consolidated net income

Consolidated net income

Consolidated net income

Contribution for cash settlement / merger
Contribution for cash settlement / merger
Contribution for cash settlement / merger
Distributions paid to non-controlling unit holders
Distributions paid to non-controlling unit holders
Distributions paid to non-controlling unit holders
Dividends paid to Preferred Stockholders
Dividends paid to Preferred Stockholders
Dividends paid to Preferred Stockholders
Treasury Shares

Treasury Shares

Treasury Shares

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in ownership interest

Balance at June 30, 2024

Balance at June 30, 2024

Balance at June 30, 2024

Balance at September 30, 2024

Balance at September 30, 2024

Balance at September 30, 2024

Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
Six Months Ended June 30, 2024
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024

Issued Shares of Class A Common Stock

Issued Shares of Class A Common Stock

Issued Shares of Class A Common Stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024

Issued Shares Issued Shares

Class A Class B
of Class A of Class B Treasury Treasury Accl lated Other Additional Retained Total Stockholders' Non-controlling  Total
Common Common
Common Common Stock Stock Comprehensive Loss Paid-in Capital Earnings Equity Interest Equity
Stock Stock
Stock Stock
Balance at March
31, 2024 3,262 4,000 (29 $ 32 % 40 $ (2,406) $ (40) $ 40,726 $ 14,829 $ 53,181 $ 2,285 $ 55,466
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Stock based
compensation
Restricted stock unit
vesting
Consolidated net
income

Distributions paid to
non-controlling unit

holders

Dividends paid to
Preferred
Stockholders
Treasury Shares
Contribution for cash
settlement / merger
Changes in

Ownership Interest

Balance at June 30,
2024

_ _ _ _ — — = 1,234 = 1,234 — 1,234
62 = = 1 = = = (287) (286) = (286)
_ _ _ _ — — — = 7,624 7,624 8071 15695
— = = = = = = = = = (4,402)  (4,402)
_ _ _ — —_ — — = (2,713) (2,713) — (2713
= = 29 = = 2,406 = (2,406) = = = —
_ _ _ — —_ — — — = 643 643
_ _ _ _ — — — (779) = (779) 779 —
3,324 4,000 — 3 333 40 $ — 3 (40) $ 38488 $ 19,740 $ 58,261 $ 7,376 $ 65,637

Three Months Ended September 30, 2024

Issued Shares Issued Shares

Class A Class B
of Class A of Class B Treasury Treasury Accl Other Additional Retained Total Stockholders' Non-controlling  Total
Common Common
Common Common Stock Stock Comprehensive Loss Paid-in Capital Earnings Equity Interest Equity
Stock Stock
Stock Stock
Balance at June 30,
2024 3,324 4,000 — 3 33 $ 40 $ — 3 (40) $ 38,488 $ 19,740 $ 58,261 $ 7,376 $ 65,637
Consolidated net
income (loss) — — — — — — — — 2,138 2,138 (483) 1,655
Dividends paid to
Preferred
Stockholders — — — — — — — — (2,707) (2,707) — (2,707)
Changes in
Ownership Interest — — — — — — — 553 — 553 (553) —
Balance at
September 30, 2024 3,324 4,000 —$ 33 $ 40 $ —$ (40) $ 39,041 $ 19,171 $ 58,245 $ 6,340 $ 64,585
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Six Months Ended June 30, 2023
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2023
Issued  Issued Issued Issued Issued
Shares = Shares Shares Accumulated Shares Shares Accumulated
Class A Class B Additional Total Non- Class A Class B Additional
of Class of Class of Class Treasury Treasury Other Retained Total of Class of Class Treasury Treasury Other
Common Common Paid-in Stockholders' controlling Common Common Paid-in
A A B Stock Stock Comp i i Equity A B Stock Stock Comprehensive
Stock Stock Capital Equity Interest Stock Stock Capital
Common Common Common Loss Common Common Loss
Stock Stock Stock Stock Stock
Balance at December
31, 2022
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Balance at December
31, 2022

Balance at December
31, 2022

Stock based
compensation
Restricted
stock unit
vesting
Consolidated

net income

Stock issued
- reverse

stock split

Distributions
paid to non-
controlling

unit holders

Dividends
paid to Class
A common
stockholders
$0.90625 per
share)

Dividends

paid to

Preferred
Stockholders
Changes in ownership
interest

Changes in ownership
interest

Changes in ownership

interest

Balance at
June 30,
2023
Balance at
September
30, 2023
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
Three Months Ended September 30, 2023
Three Months Ended September 30, 2023
Three Months Ended September 30, 2023
Issued Issued Issued Issued Issued
Shares = Shares Shares Accumulated Shares Shares A
Class A ClassB Additional Total Non- Class A Class B
of Class  of Class of Class Treasury Treasury Other Retained Total of Class of Class Treasury Treasury
Common Common Paid-in Stockholders' controlling Common Common
A A B Stock Stock Comprehensive Earnings Equity A B Stock Stock Ca
Stock  Stock Capital Equity Interest Stock  Stock
Ci 1 C C Loss Common Common
Stock Stock ~ Stock Stock  Stock
Balance at
March 31,
2023
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Balance at
June 30,
2023

Stock based

compensation

Stock based

compensation
Stock based
compensation
Restricted
stock unit
vesting
Consolidated

net income

Distributions paid to
non-controlling unit

holders

Distributions paid to
non-controlling unit

holders

Distributions paid to
non-controlling unit

holders

Dividends paid to

Preferred Stockholders

Dividends paid to

Preferred Stockholders

Dividends paid to

Preferred Stockholders

Changes in ownership

interest

Changes in ownership

interest

Changes in ownership
interest

Balance at
June 30,
2023

Balance at

September
30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

VIA RENEWABLES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)
(unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Net income
Net income
Adji is to r ile net i to net cash flows provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
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Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Deferred income taxes
Stock based compensation
Stock based compensation
Stock based compensation
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Bad debt expense
Bad debt expense
Bad debt expense
Loss on derivatives, net
Current period cash settlements on derivatives, net
Other
Other
Other
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable—affiliates
Decrease in accounts receivable—affiliates
Decrease in inventory
Increase in customer acquisition costs
Decrease in prepaid and other current assets
Increase in customer acquisition costs
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable—affiliates
Increase in accounts payable—affiliates
Decrease in other current liabilities
Decrease in other non-current liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of property and equipment
Acquisition of Customers
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on notes payable
Borrowings on notes payable
Borrowings on notes payable
Payments on notes payable
Net paydown on subordinated debt facility
Restricted stock vesting
Restricted stock vesting

Restricted stock vesting
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Contribution for cash settlement of merger
Contribution for cash settlement of merger
Contribution for cash settlement of merger
Payment of dividends to Class A common stockholders
Payment of distributions to non-controlling unitholders
Payment of Preferred Stock dividends
Net cash used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities
Increase in Cash, cash equivalents and Restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents and Restricted cash—beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents and Restricted cash—end of period
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Non-cash items:
Non-cash items:
Non-cash items:
Property and equipment purchase accrual
Property and equipment purchase accrual
Property and equipment purchase accrual
Cash paid during the period for:
Cash paid during the period for:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest
Interest
Interest

Taxes

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

VIA RENEWABLES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

1. Formation and Organization
Organization

We are an independent retail energy services company that provides residential and commercial customers in competitive markets across the United States with an
alternative choice for natural gas and electricity. The Company is a holding company whose primary asset consists of units in Spark HoldCo, LLC (“Spark HoldCo").
The Company is the sole managing member of Spark HoldCo, is responsible for all operational, management and administrative decisions relating to Spark
HoldCo's business and consolidates the financial results of Spark HoldCo and its subsidiaries. Spark HoldCo is the direct and indirect owner of the subsidiaries
through which we operate. We conduct our business through several brands across our service areas, including Electricity Maine, Electricity N.H., Major Energy,
Provider Power Massachusetts, Spark Energy, and Verde Energy. Via Energy Solutions (“VES”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that offers broker
services for retail energy customers. Via Wireless is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company that offers wireless services and equipment to wireless customers.

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”") as it applies to
interim financial statements. This information should be read along with our consolidated financial statements and notes contained in our annual report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Form 10-K”). Our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are presented on a consolidated
basis and include all wholly-owned and controlled subsidiaries. We account for investments over which we have significant influence but not a controlling financial
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interest using the equity method of accounting. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the Company's management, the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments that are necessary to fairly
present the financial position, the results of operations, the changes in equity and the cash flows of the Company for the respective periods. Such adjustments are
of a normal recurring nature, unless otherwise disclosed.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of our condensed consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the interim financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could materially differ from those estimates.

Relationship with our Founder, Sole Common Stock Shareholder, and Chief Executive Officer

W. Keith Maxwell, Ill is the Chief Executive Officer, a director, and the owner of all of the voting power of our common stock through his ownership of Retailco, LLC
(“Retailco”). Retailco is a wholly owned subsidiary of TXEx Energy Investments, LLC (“TxEX"), which is wholly owned by Mr. Maxwell.

We enter into transactions with and pay certain costs on behalf of affiliates that are commonly controlled by Mr. Maxwell, and these affiliates enter into transactions
with and pay certain costs on our behalf. We undertake these

transactions in order to reduce risk, reduce administrative expense, create economies of scale, create strategic alliances and supply goods and services among
these related parties.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, employee benefits provided through the Company’s benefit plans, insurance plans, leased office space, certain
administrative salaries, management due diligence, recurring management consulting, and accounting, tax, legal, or technology services. Amounts billed under
these arrangements are based on services provided, departmental usage, or headcount, which are considered reasonable by management. As such, the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include costs that have been incurred by the Company and then directly billed or allocated to affiliates,
and costs that have been incurred by our affiliates and then directly billed or allocated to us, and are recorded net in general and administrative expense on the
condensed consolidated statements of operations with a corresponding accounts receivable—affiliates or accounts payable —affiliates, respectively, recorded in the
consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, the Company enters into transactions with certain affiliates for sales or purchases of natural gas and electricity, which are
recorded in retail revenues, retail cost of revenues, and net asset optimization revenues in the condensed consolidated statements of operations with a
corresponding accounts receivable—affiliate or accounts payable—affiliate in the consolidated balance sheets. The allocations and related estimates and
assumptions are described more fully in Note 13 “Transactions with Affiliates.”

On June 13, 2024, we consummated the previously announced merger contemplated by that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”),
dated as of December 29, 2023, by and among the Company, Retailco, and NuRetailco LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-owned subsidiary of
Retailco (“Merger Sub”), pursuant to which Merger Sub was merged with and into the Company (the “Merger”), with the Company continuing as the surviving
corporation in the Merger, following which Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company's Class A
common stock and Class B common stock. As a result, each previously outstanding share of Class A common stock was converted into the right to receive $11.00
per share at the closing of the Merger (other than: (i) shares of Class A common stock held (a) by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company, or (b) held or
beneficially owned by Mr. Maxwell and any person or entity controlled by Mr. Maxwell, including Retailco, Merger Sub and NuDevco Retail, LLC (“NuDevco Retail”),
and other than certain dissenting shares). As a result of the Merger, all of the Company’s outstanding restricted stock units were converted into $11.00 per share
(other than those owned by Mr. Maxwell, which were cancelled for no consideration). Effective as of the end of trading on June 13, 2024, the Class A common stock
ceased to trade on NASDAQ.

New Accounting Standards Being Evaluated/Standards Not yet adopted

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280):
Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The amendments in the ASU improve reportable segment disclosures by adding and enhancing annual and
interim disclosure requirements, clarifying circumstances in which entities can disclose multiple segment measures of profit or loss, providing new segment
disclosure requirements for entities with a single reportable segment, and adding other disclosure requirements. ASU 2023-07 will be effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The adoption of ASU 2023-07 will result in additional
segment-related footnote disclosures within the notes to the consolidated financial statements. We are evaluating do not expect the adoption of ASU 2023-07 to
have a material impact of adoption on our the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The ASU requires enhanced income
tax disclosures, particularly related to a reporting entity's effective tax rate reconciliation and income taxes paid. For the rate reconciliation, the update requires
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additional categories of information about federal, state, and foreign taxes and details about significant reconciling items, subject to a quantitative threshold. Income
taxes paid must be similarly disaggregated by federal, state, and foreign based on a quantitative threshold. The ASU will be effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2024. The guidance will be applied on a prospective basis with the option to apply retrospectively. We are evaluating the impact of adoption on
our consolidated financial statements.

The Company considers the applicability and impact of all ASUs. New ASUs were assessed and determined to be either not applicable or are expected to have
minimal impact on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

3. Revenues

Our revenues are derived primarily from the sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, including affiliates. Revenue is measured based upon the quantity of
gas or power delivered at prices contained or referenced in the customer's contract, and excludes any sales incentives (e.g., rebates) and amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (e.g., sales tax).

Our revenues also include asset optimization activities. Asset optimization activities consist primarily of purchases and sales of gas that meet the definition of
trading activities per FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging. They are therefore excluded from the scope of FASB ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers.

Other revenue is derived from contracts with customers through the provision of wireless and other services and the sale of wireless equipment.

Revenues for electricity and natural gas sales are recognized under the accrual method when our performance obligation to a customer is satisfied, which is the
point in time when the product is delivered and control of the product passes to the customer. Electricity and natural gas products may be sold as fixed-price or
variable-price products. The typical length of a contract to provide electricity and/or natural gas is 12 months. Customers are billed and typically pay at least monthly,
based on usage. Electricity and natural gas sales that have been delivered but not billed by period end are estimated and recorded as accrued unbilled revenues
based on estimates of customer usage since the date of the last meter read provided by the utility. Volume estimates are based on forecasted volumes and
estimated residential and commercial customer usage. Unbilled revenues are calculated by multiplying these volume estimates by the applicable rate by customer
class (residential or commercial). Estimated amounts are adjusted when actual usage is known and billed.

The following table discloses revenue by primary geographical market, customer type, and customer credit risk profile (in thousands). The table also includes a
reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue to revenue by reportable segment (in thousands).

Reportable Segments

Reportable Segments

Reportable Segments

Three Months Ended  Three Months Ended
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30, 2024 September 30, 2023

Retail Retail Retail Total Retail Retail Total Retail Retail Total Retail Retail Total
Electricity Electricity Natural Reportable Electricity Natural = Reportable Electricity Natural Reportable Electricity Natural Reportable
(c) (c) Gas Segments (c) Gas Segments (c) Gas Segments (c) Gas Segments

Primary markets (a)
Primary markets (a)
Primary markets (a)
New England

New England

New England

Mid-

Atlantic

REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES | www.refinitiv.com | Contact Us 15/69
©2024 Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Republication or redistribution of Refinitiv content, including by framing or similar means, is prohibited without the prior written R E F I N I T I V I

consent of Refinitiv. 'Refinitiv' and the Refinitiv logo are registered trademarks of Refinitiv and its affiliated companies.


https://www.refinitiv.com/
https://www.refinitiv.com/en/contact-us

Midwest
Southwest

$
Customer type
Customer type
Customer type
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial
Residential
Unbilled
revenue
(b)

$
Customer credit
risk
Customer credit
risk
Customer credit
risk
POR
POR
POR
Non-POR

Reportable Segments

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2024

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2023

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2024

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2023

Retail Retail Retail
Electricity Electricity Natural
(c) (c) Gas

Primary markets (a)
Primary markets (a)
Primary markets (a)
New England
New England
New England
Mid-
Atlantic
Midwest
Southwest

$
Customer type
Customer type
Customer type
Commercial
Commercial
Commercial

Residential

Retail Retail
Electricity = Natural
Segments (c) Gas

Total
Reportable

Total Retail Retail
Reportable Electricity Natural
Segments (c) Gas
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Unbilled

revenue
(b)

$
Customer credit risk
Customer credit risk
Customer credit risk
POR
POR
POR
Non-POR

$

(a) The primary markets include the following states:

* New England - Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts and New Hampshire;

* Mid-Atlantic - Delaware, Maryland (including the District of Columbia), New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania and Virginia;
« Midwest - lllinois, Indiana, Michigan and Ohio; and

* Southwest - Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Nevada and Texas.

(b) Unbilled revenue is recorded in total until it is actualized, at which time it is categorized between commercial and residential customers.

(c) Retall Electricity includes Services.

Reconciliation to Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

A reconciliation of the reportable segment operating revenues to consolidated revenues is as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Total Reportable Segments Revenue
Net asset optimization expense
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

We record gross receipts taxes on a gross basis in retail revenues and retail cost of revenues. During the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024
and 2023, our retail revenues included gross receipts taxes of $0.2 $0.3 million and $0.2 $0.3 million, respectively, and our retail cost of revenues included gross
receipts taxes of $1.3 million and $1.3$1.5 million, respectively. During the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, our retail revenues
included gross receipt taxes of $0.6 $0.8 million, and $0.5 million, respectively, and our retail cost of revenues included gross receipts taxes of $2.7 $4.0 million and
$2.6 $4.1 million, respectively.

Accounts receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses

The Company conducts business in many utility service markets where the local regulated utility purchases our receivables, and then becomes responsible for
billing the customer and collecting payment from the customer (“POR programs”). These POR programs result in substantially all of the Company’s credit risk being
linked to the applicable utility, which generally has an investment-grade rating, and not to the end-use customer. The Company monitors the financial condition of
each utility and currently believes its receivables are collectible.

In markets that do not offer POR programs or when the Company chooses to directly bill its customers, certain receivables are billed and collected by the Company.
The Company bears the credit risk on these accounts and records an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect any losses due to non-payment by
customers. The Company’s customers are individually insignificant and geographically dispersed in these markets. The Company writes off customer balances
when it believes that amounts are no longer collectible and when it has exhausted all means to collect these receivables.
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For trade accounts receivables, the Company accrues an allowance for credit losses by business segment by pooling customer accounts receivables based on
similar risk characteristics, such as customer type, geography, aging analysis, payment terms, and related macro-economic factors. Expected credit loss exposure
is evaluated for each of our accounts receivables pools. Expected credits losses are established using a model that considers historical collections experience,
current information, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The Company writes off accounts receivable balances against the allowance for credit losses when
the accounts receivable is deemed to be uncollectible.

A rollforward of our allowance for credit losses for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 are presented in the table below (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ (4,496)

Current period credit loss provision (1,321)(1,858)
Write-offs 2,1913,078
Recovery of previous write-offs (58) (106)
Balance at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 $ (3,684)(3,382)
4. Equity

Non-controlling Interest

We hold an economic interest and are the sole managing member in Spark HoldCo, with affiliates of Mr. Maxwell and majority shareholder holding the remaining
economic interests in Spark HoldCo. As a result, we consolidate the financial position and results of operations of Spark HoldCo, and reflect the economic interests
owned by these affiliates as a non-controlling interest. The Company and affiliates owned the following economic interests in Spark HoldCo at June 30,

2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively.

The Company The Company Affiliated Owners The Company Affiliated Owners
June 30, 2024 45.38 % 54.62 %
September 30, 2024 45.38 % 54.62 %
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2023 44.92 % 55.08 % December 31, 2023 44.92 % 55.08 %

The following table summarizes the portion of net income and income tax expense attributable to non-controlling interest (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September
30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Net income before taxes allocated to non-controlling interest
Net income before taxes allocated to non-controlling interest
Net income before taxes allocated to non-controlling interest

Less: Income tax expense allocated to non-controlling
interest

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Net (loss) income attributable to non-controlling interests
Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock

Holders of the Company’s Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together as a single class on all matters presented to our stockholders for their
vote or approval, except as otherwise required by applicable law or by our certificate of incorporation.

As a result of the Merger, on June 13, 2024, Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company's Class A
common stock and Class B common stock. Effective as of the end of trading on June 13, 2024, the Class A common stock ceased to trade on NASDAQ.
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Dividends on Class A Common Stock

Dividends declared for the Company’s Class A common stock are reported as a reduction of retained earnings, or a reduction of additional paid in capital to the
extent retained earnings are exhausted. During the three and six nine months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2024, we did not pay dividends to the holders of
the Company’s Class A common stock and did not make corresponding distributions to our non-controlling interest holders.

In April 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors elected to temporarily suspend the quarterly cash dividend on the Class A common stock. During the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2023, we paid zero and $2.9 million in dividends to the holders of the Company's Class A common stock. This dividend
represented a quarterly rate of $0.90625 per share on each share of Class A common stock.

In April 2023, we announced that our Board of Directors elected to temporarily suspend the quarterly cash dividend on the Class A common stock. During the three
and six months ended June 30, 2024, we did not pay dividends to the holders of the Company’s Class A common stock and did not make corresponding
distributions to our non-controlling interest holders.

In order to pay our stated dividends to holders of our Class A common stock, our subsidiary, Spark HoldCo is required to make corresponding distributions to
holders of its units, including those holders that own our Class B common stock (our non-controlling interest holder). As a result, during the three and sixnine
months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023, Spark HoldCo made corresponding distributions of zero and $3.6 million to our non-controlling interest holders,
respectively.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income attributable to stockholders (the numerator) by the weighted-average number of Class A
common shares outstanding for the period (the denominator). Class B common shares are not included in the calculation of basic earnings per share because they
are not participating securities and have no economic interests. Diluted earnings per share is similarly calculated except that the denominator is increased by
potentially dilutive securities.

The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted income per share for the three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and
2023 (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. stockholders
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. stockholders
Net income attributable to Via Renewables, Inc. stockholders
Less: Dividend on Series A Preferred Stock
Less: Dividend on Series A Preferred Stock
Less: Dividend on Series A Preferred Stock
Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding
Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding
Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding
Basic income per share attributable to stockholders
Basic income per share attributable to stockholders

Basic income per share attributable to stockholders
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Basic (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

Basic (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

Basic (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock

Effect of conversion of Class B common stock to shares of Class A common stock
Effect of conversion of Class B common stock to shares of Class A common stock
Effect of conversion of Class B common stock to shares of Class A common stock
Diluted net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Diluted net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Diluted net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Diluted net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Diluted net income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Diluted net (loss) income attributable to stockholders of Class A common stock
Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding

Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding

Basic weighted average Class A common shares outstanding

Effect of dilutive Class B common stock

Effect of dilutive Class B common stock

Effect of dilutive Class B common stock

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Diluted income per share attributable to stockholders

Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

Diluted income per share attributable to stockholders

Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

Diluted income per share attributable to stockholders

Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to stockholders

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the three and sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, September 30, 2024, respectively, excludes
4.0 million shares of Class B common stock because the effect of their conversion was

antidilutive. The Company’s outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock were not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they contain
only contingent redemption provisions that have not occurred.

Variable Interest Entity

Spark HoldCo is a variable interest entity due to its lack of rights to participate in significant financial and operating decisions and its inability to dissolve or otherwise
remove its management. Spark HoldCo owns all of the outstanding membership interests in each of our operating subsidiaries. We are the sole managing member
of Spark HoldCo, manage Spark HoldCo’s operating subsidiaries through this managing membership interest, and are considered the primary beneficiary of Spark
HoldCo. The assets of Spark HoldCo cannot be used to settle our obligations except through distributions to us, and the liabilities of Spark HoldCo cannot be settled
by us except through contributions to Spark HoldCo. The following table includes the carrying amounts and classification of the assets and liabilities of Spark
HoldCo that are included in our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands):

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
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September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
Current assets:
Current assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Other current assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets:
Goodwill
Goodwill
Goodwill
Other assets
Other assets
Other assets
Total non-current assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Liabilities
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Long-term portion of Senior Credit Facility
Subordinated debt — affiliate
Other long-term liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities

Total Liabilities
5. Preferred Stock

Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock have no voting rights, except in specific circumstances of delisting or in the case the dividends are in arrears as specified in
the Series A Preferred Stock Certificate of Designations. The Series A Preferred Stock accrued dividends at an annual percentage rate of 8.75% through April 14,
2022. The floating rate period for the Series A Preferred Stock began on April 15, 2022. The dividend on the Series A Preferred Stock will accrue at an annual rate
equal to the sum of (a) Three-Month LIBOR (if it then exists), or an alternative reference rate as of the applicable determination date and (b) 6.578%, based on the
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$25.00 liquidation preference per share of the Series A Preferred Stock. The liquidation preference provisions of the Series A Preferred Stock are considered
contingent redemption provisions because there are rights granted to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock that are not solely within our control upon a
change in control of the Company. Accordingly, the

Series A Preferred Stock is presented between liabilities and the equity sections in the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets. As of April 15, 2022,
we have the option to redeem our Series A Preferred Stock.

Following the cessation of the publication of U.S. LIBOR on June 30, 2023, we use Three Month CME Term SOFR plus a tenor spread of 0.26161 percent (or
26.161 bps) to calculate the dividend rate on the Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to the rules of the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act.

As a result of the Merger, holders of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock were provided an optional limited change of control conversion right (the “Conversion
Right”), available at the option of the holder, for $8.07 per share in cash. On June 27, 2024, the Company provided notice to the holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock of the Conversion Right. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock were entitled to exercise the Conversion Right through July 26, 2024. No holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock exercised the Conversion Right.

During the three and sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we paid $2.7 million and $5.4 million $8.2 million in dividends to holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we had accrued $2.7 million related to dividends to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock.
This dividend was paid on July 15, 2024 October 15, 2024.

A summary of our preferred equity balance for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 is as follows:

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 88,065
Accumulated dividends on Series A Preferred Stock (a5)(21)
Balance at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 $ 88,050 88,044

6. Derivative Instruments

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price of electricity and natural gas, basis differences in the price of natural gas, storage charges,
renewable energy credits (“‘RECs”), and capacity charges from independent system operators. We use derivative instruments in an effort to manage our cash flow
exposure to these risks. These instruments are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, and accordingly, changes in the market value of these derivative
instruments are recorded in the cost of revenues. As part of our strategy to optimize pricing in our natural gas related activities, we also manage a portfolio of
commodity derivative instruments held for trading purposes. Our commodity trading activities are subject to limits within our Risk Management Policy. For these
derivative instruments, changes in the fair value are recognized currently in earnings in net asset optimization revenues.

Derivative assets and liabilities are presented net in our condensed consolidated balance sheets when the derivative instruments are executed with the same
counterparty under a master netting arrangement. Our derivative contracts include transactions that are executed both on an exchange and centrally cleared, as
well as over-the-counter, bilateral contracts that are transacted directly with third parties. To the extent we have paid or received collateral related to the derivative
assets or liabilities, such amounts would be presented net against the related derivative asset or liability’s fair value. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, we offset $2.0 million $1.3 million and $5.2 million, respectively, in collateral to net against the related derivative liability’s fair value. The specific
types of derivative instruments we may execute to manage the commodity price risk include the following:

« Forward contracts, which commit us to purchase or sell energy commodities in the future;

« Futures contracts, which are exchange-traded standardized commitments to purchase or sell a commodity or financial instrument;

* Swap agreements, which require payments to or from counterparties based upon the differential between two prices for a predetermined notional quantity;
and

« Option contracts, which convey to the option holder the right but not the obligation to purchase or sell a commodity.

The Company has entered into other energy-related contracts that do not meet the definition of a derivative instrument or for which we made a normal purchase,
normal sale election and are therefore not accounted for at fair value including the following:
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« Forward electricity and natural gas purchase contracts for retail customer load;
* Renewable energy credits; and
» Natural gas transportation contracts and storage agreements.

Volumes Underlying Derivative Transactions

The following table summarizes the net notional volumes of our open derivative financial instruments accounted for at fair value by commaodity. Positive amounts
represent net buys while bracketed amounts are net sell transactions (in thousands):

Non-trading
Commodity Commodity  Notional June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 Commodity Notional September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Natural Gas

Electricity

Electricity

Electricity

Trading
Commodity Commodity Notional June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023 Commodity Notional September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023

Natural Gas
Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments

Gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net and current period settlements on derivative instruments were as follows for the periods indicated (in thousands):

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023
Gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net $ 3,160 $ (40) $ (1,136) $ (42,809)
Gain (loss) on trading derivatives, net 20 (627) 111 (628)
Gain (loss) on derivatives, net $ 3,180 $ (667) $ (1,025) $ (43,437)
Current period settlements on non-trading derivatives 7,683 16,146 22,925 36,269
Current period settlements on trading derivatives 84 384 267 398
Total current period settlements on derivatives $ 7,767 $ 16,530 $ 23,192 $ 36,667

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Loss on non-trading derivatives, net $ (10,979) $ (6,193) $ (12,115) $ (49,002)
Loss on trading derivatives, net (643) (798) (532) (1,426)
Loss on derivatives, net $ (11,622) $ (6,991) $ (12,647) $ (50,428)
Current period settlements on non-trading derivatives 6,613 14,430 29,538 50,699
Current period settlements on trading derivatives 532 670 799 1,068
Total current period settlements on derivatives $ 7,145 $ 15,100 $ 30,337 $ 51,767

Gains (losses) on trading derivative instruments are recorded in net asset optimization revenues and gains (losses) on non-trading derivative instruments are
recorded in retail cost of revenues on the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The following tables summarize the fair value and offsetting amounts of our derivative instruments by counterparty and collateral received or paid (in thousands):

June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024
Gross Cash Gross Cash
Amounts Collateral| Net Amount Amounts Collateral Net Amount
Description Description Gross Assets Offset Net Assets Offset = PresenteDescription Gross Assets Offset Net Assets Offset Presented
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Non-trading commodity
derivatives

Trading commodity derivatives

Total Current Derivative
Assets

Non-trading commodity
derivatives

Total Non-current Derivative Assets
Total Non-current Derivative Assets
Trading commodity
derivatives
Total Non-current Derivative Assets

Total Derivative Assets

Gross Cash Gross Cash
Gross Amounts Net Collateral Net Amount Gross Amounts Net Collateral Net Amount
Description Description Liabilities Offset | Liabilities Offset Presented Description Liabilities Offset Liabilities Offset Presented
Non-trading commodity derivatives
Trading commodity derivatives
Total Current Derivative Liabilities
Non-trading commodity derivatives
Trading commodity derivatives
Total Non-current Derivative
Liabilities
Total Derivative Liabilities
December 31, 2023
Gross Cash
Amounts Collateral Net Amount
Description Gross Assets Offset Net Assets Offset Presented
Non-trading commodity derivatives $ 1926 $ (1,046) $ 880 $ — 3 880
Trading commodity derivatives 64 (35) 29 — 29
Total Current Derivative Assets 1,990 (1,081) 909 — 909
Non-trading commodity derivatives 173 (82) 91 — 91
Trading commodity derivatives = = = = =
Total Non-current Derivative Assets 173 (82) 91 — 91
Total Derivative Assets $ 2,163 $ (1,163) $ 1,000 $ — 8 1,000
Gross Cash
Gross Amounts Net Collateral Net Amount
Description Liabilities Offset Liabilities Offset Presented
Non-trading commodity derivatives $ (29,730) $ 6,077 $ (23,653) $ 4,679 $ (18,974)
Trading commodity derivatives (173) 6 (167) — (167)
Total Current Derivative Liabilities (29,903) 6,083 (23,820) 4,679 (19,141)
Non-trading commodity derivatives (672) 115 (557) 503 (54)
Trading commodity derivatives — — — — —
Total Non-current Derivative Liabilities (672) 115 (557) 503 (54)
Total Derivative Liabilities $ (30,575) $ 6,198 $ (24,377) $ 5182 $ (19,195)

7. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following (in thousands):

Estimated useful
lives (years)

lives (years)

Estimated useful

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
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Information technology
Information technology
Information technology
Total
Total
Total
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment—net

Information technology assets include software and consultant time used in the application, development and implementation of various systems including customer
billing and resource management systems. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, information technology includes $1.6 million$1.9
million and $1.5 million, respectively, of costs associated with assets not yet placed into service.

Depreciation expense recorded in the condensed consolidated statements of operations was $0.3 million and $0.3 million $0.4 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and $0.6 million $0.9 million and $0.7 $1.1 million for the six nine months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

8. Intangible Assets

Goodwill, customer relationships and trademarks consist of the following amounts (in thousands):
June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Goodwill
Customer relationships—Acquired
Customer relationships—Acquired
Customer relationships—Acquired
Customer relationships—Other
Cost
Cost
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Customer relationships—Other, net
Cost
Cost
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Trademarks, net

Changes in goodwill, customer relationships (including non-compete agreements) and trademarks consisted of the following (in thousands):
Goodwill
Goodwill
Goodwill Customer Relationships— Other Trademarks Customer Relationships— Other Trademarks
Balance at December 31, 2023
Additions
Amortization
Amortization
Amortization
Balance at June 30, 2024
Balance at September 30, 2024

Estimated future amortization expense for customer relationships and trademarks at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 is as follows (in thousands):
Year ending December 31,

2024 (remaining six months)
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2024 (remaining three months)
2024 (remaining six months)
2024 (remaining three months)
2024 (remaining six months)
2024 (remaining three months)
2025

2026

2027

2028

> 5 years

Total

9. Debt

Debt consists of the following amounts as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (in thousands):
June 30, 2024
June 30, 2024
June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
September 30, 2024
September 30, 2024
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Long-term debt:
Long-term debt:
Long-term debt:
Senior Credit Facility (1) )
Senior Credit Facility (1) )

Senior Credit Facility (1) )

Subordinated Debt
Total long-term debt
Total long-term debt
Total long-term debt

Total debt
(1) As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the weighted average interest rate on the Senior Credit Facility was 8.59% 8.09% and 8.60%, respectively.
(2) As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had $23.8 million $23.3 million and $24.3 million in letters of credit issued, respectively.

Capitalized financing costs associated with our Senior Credit Facility were $2.0 million $1.8 million and $1.2 million as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively. Of these amounts, $0.7 million $0.6 million and $0.8 million are recorded in other current assets, and $1.3$1.2 million and $0.4
million are recorded in other non-current assets in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023,
respectively.

Interest expense consists of the following components for the periods indicated (in thousands):
Three Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September 30,
Three Months Ended September 30,

Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Senior Credit Facility
Letters of credit fees and commitment fees
Letters of credit fees and commitment fees
Letters of credit fees and commitment fees
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Amortization of deferred financing costs
Other

Interest Expense
Senior Credit Facility

The Company and Spark Holdco (“Spark Holdco”, and together (together with certain subsidiaries of the Company and Spark Holdco, the “Co-Borrowers”) maintain
a senior secured borrowing base credit facility with Woodforest National Bank, as administrative agent (the “Agent”), swing bank, swap bank, issuing bank, joint-lead
arranger, sole bookrunner and syndication agent, and the other financial institutions party thereto as lenders. As further described below, on June 28, 2024, the
Company entered into the First Amendment (the "First Amendment") to its senior credit facility (as amended by the First Amendment, the “Senior Credit Facility”).
The Senior Credit Facility matures on June 30, 2027 and has a borrowing capacity of $205.0 million. As a result of the First Amendment to the Credit Agreement,
we wrote off $0.1 million in deferred financing costs.

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility are available for working capital loans, loans to fund acquisitions, swingline loans, letters of credit and, following the First
Amendment, for repurchases of Series A Preferred Stock (subject to the terms and conditions therein).

Borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility bear interest at the following rates depending on the classification of the borrowing and provided further that at no time
shall the interest rate be less than four percent (4.0%) per annum:

* The Base Rate (a rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) the prime rate, (b) the Federal Funds Rate plus %2 of 1% and (c) Term Secured Overnight
Financing Rate (“SOFR”) for a one month tenor plus 1.0%, provided, that the Base Rate shall not at any time be less than 0%), plus an applicable margin of
2.25% to

3.50% depending on the type of borrowing and the average outstanding amount of loans and letters of credit under the Senior Credit Facility at the end of
the prior fiscal quarter;

e The Term SOFR (a rate equal to the forward looking secured overnight financing rate published by the SOFR administrator on the website of the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York or any successor source with either a comparable tenor (for any calculation with respect to a SOFR loan) or a one month tenor
(for any calculation with respect to a Base Rate loan)), plus an applicable margin of 3.25% to 4.50% depending on the type of borrowing and the average
outstanding amount of loans and letters of credit under the Senior Credit Facility at the end of the prior fiscal quarter; or

e The Daily Simple SOFR (a rate equal to the forward looking secured overnight financing rate published by the SOFR administrator on the website of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York or any successor source and applied on a daily basis by the Agent in accordance with rate recommendations for daily
loans), plus an applicable margin of 3.25% to 4.50% depending on the type of borrowing and the average outstanding amount of loans and letters of credit
under the Senior Credit Facility at the end of the prior fiscal quarter, plus a liquidity premium added by the Agent to each borrowing.

The Co-Borrowers are required to pay a non-utilization fee of 0.50% quarterly in arrears on the unused portion of the Senior Credit Facility. In addition, the Co-
Borrowers are subject to additional fees including an upfront fee, an annual administrative agency fee, an arrangement fee and letter of credit fees.

The Senior Credit Facility contains covenants that, among other things, require the maintenance of specified ratios or conditions including:

* Minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. The Company must maintain a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio of not less than 1.10 to 1.00. The Minimum
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio is defined as the ratio of (a) Adjusted EBITDA to (b) the sum of, among other things, consolidated interest expense, letter of
credit fees, non-utilization fees, earn-out payments, certain restricted payments, taxes, and payments made on or after July 31, 2020 related to the
settlement of civil and regulatory matters if not included in the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA. Our Minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio as of June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 was 1.711.68 to 1.00.

* Maximum Total Leverage Ratio. The Company must maintain a ratio of (x) the sum of all consolidated indebtedness (excluding eligible subordinated debt
and letter of credit obligations), plus (y) gross amounts reserved for civil and regulatory liabilities identified in filings with the SEC, to Adjusted EBITDA of no
more than 3.00 to 1.00. Our Maximum Total Leverage Ratio as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was 1.911.96 to 1.00.

The First Amendment eliminated the Maximum Senior Secured Leverage Ratio covenant and amended the Maximum Total Leverage Ratio covenant to no more
than 3.00 to 1.00 from no more than 2.50 to 1.00.

As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, the Company was in compliance with financial covenants under the Senior Credit Facility. The Company continues to

manage the impact of commodity costs on financial covenant compliance. Maintaining compliance with our covenants under our Senior Credit Facility may impact
our ability to pay dividends on our Series A Preferred Stock.
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The Senior Credit Facility contains various customary affirmative covenants that require, among other things, the Company to maintain insurance, pay its obligations
and comply with law. The Senior Credit Facility also contains customary negative covenants that limit the Company’s ability to, among other things, incur certain
additional indebtedness, grant certain liens, engage in certain asset dispositions, merge or consolidate, make certain payments, distributions and dividends,
investments, acquisitions or loans, materially modify certain agreements, and enter into transactions with affiliates.

The Senior Credit Facility is secured by pledges of the equity of the portion of Spark HoldCo owned by the Company, the equity of Spark HoldCo's subsidiaries, the
Co-Borrowers’ present and future subsidiaries, and substantially all of the Co-Borrowers’ and their subsidiaries’ present and future property and assets, including
intellectual property assets, accounts receivable, inventory and liquid investments, and control agreements relating to bank accounts.

The Company is entitled to pay cash dividends so long as: (a) no default exists or would result therefrom; (b) the Co-Borrowers are in pro forma compliance with all
financial covenants before and after giving effect thereto; and (c) the outstanding amount of all loans and letters of credit do not exceed the borrowing base limits.

The Senior Credit Facility contains certain customary representations and warranties and events of default. Events of default include, among other things, payment
defaults, breaches of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, cross-defaults and cross-acceleration to certain indebtedness, certain events of
bankruptcy, certain events under ERISA, material judgments in excess of $5.0 million, certain events with respect to material contracts, and actual or asserted
failure of any guaranty or security document supporting the Senior Credit Facility to be in full force and effect. A default will also occur if at any time W. Keith
Maxwell Ill ceases to, directly or indirectly, beneficially own at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Company’s outstanding Class A common stock and Class B
common stock on a combined basis, and a controlling percentage of the voting equity interest of the Company, and certain other changes in control. If such an
event of default occurs, the lenders under the Senior Credit Facility would be entitled to take various actions, including the acceleration of amounts due under the
facility and all actions permitted to be taken by a secured creditor.

Subordinated Debt Facility

The Company maintains an Amended and Restated Subordinated Promissory Note in the principal amount of up to $25.0 million (the “Subordinated Debt Facility”),
by and among the Company, Spark HoldCo and Retailco. The Subordinated Debt Facility allows the Company to draw advances in increments of no less than
$1.0 million per advance up to $25.0 million. In connection with entering into the First Amendment to the Credit Agreement, the Company entered into an amended
and restated subordinated promissory note with Spark HoldCo and Retailco, which extends the maturity date of the note to January 31, 2028.

Borrowings are at the discretion of Retailco. Advances thereunder accrue interest at an annual rate equal to the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal
plus two percent (2.0%) from the date of the advance.

The Company has the right to capitalize interest payments under the Subordinated Debt Facility. The Subordinated Debt Facility is subordinated in certain respects
to our Senior Credit Facility pursuant to a subordination agreement. The Company may pay interest and prepay principal on the Subordinated Debt Facility so long it
is in compliance with the covenants under the Senior Credit Facility, is not in default under the Senior Credit Facility and has minimum availability of $5.0 million
under the borrowing base under the Senior Credit Facility. Payment of principal and interest under the Subordinated Debt Facility is accelerated upon the
occurrence of certain change of control or sale transactions.

As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, and December 31, 2023, there were zero outstanding borrowings under the Subordinated Debt Facility.

10. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Fair values are based on assumptions that market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about
risk and the risks inherent in valuation techniques and the inputs to valuations. This includes the credit standing of counterparties involved and the impact of credit
enhancements.

We apply fair value measurements to our commodity derivative instruments based on the following fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs to the valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels:

. Level 1—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities. Instruments categorized in Level 1 primarily consist of financial
instruments such as exchange-traded derivative instruments.
. Level 2—Inputs other than quoted prices recorded in Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability, including quoted

prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived from observable market data by correlation or other means.
Instruments categorized in Level 2 primarily include non-exchange traded derivatives such as over-the-counter commodity forwards and swaps and
options.

. Level 3—Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, if any, observable market activity for the asset or
liability. The Level 3 category includes estimated earnout obligations related to our acquisitions.

As the fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable data (Level 3), the Company
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These levels can change over time. In some
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cases, the inputs used to measure fair value might fall in different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In these cases, the lowest level input that is significant to a fair
value measurement in its entirety determines the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables present assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value in our condensed consolidated balance sheets on a recurring basis by and
their level within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

Level 1 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
June 30, 2024
September 30, 2024
Non-trading commodity derivative assets
Non-trading commodity derivative assets
Non-trading commaodity derivative assets
Trading commodity derivative assets
Total commodity derivative assets
Non-trading commaodity derivative liabilities
Trading commodity derivative liabilities

Total commodity derivative liabilities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2023
Non-trading commodity derivative assets $ — 3 971 $ — 3 971

Trading commodity derivative assets — 29 — 29

Total commodity derivative assets $ — 3 1,000 $ — 3 1,000

Non-trading commodity derivative liabilities $ — $ (19,028) $ — $ (19,028)
Trading commodity derivative liabilities — (167) — (167)

Total commodity derivative liabilities $ — % (19,195) $ — 3 (19,195)

We had no transfers of assets or liabilities between any of the above levels during the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and the year
ended December 31, 2023.

Our derivative contracts include exchange-traded contracts valued utilizing readily available quoted market prices and non-exchange-traded contracts valued using
market price quotations available through brokers or over-the-counter and on-line exchanges. In addition, in determining the fair value of our derivative contracts, we
apply a credit risk valuation adjustment to reflect credit risk, which is calculated based on our or the counterparty’s historical credit risks. As of June 30,

2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the credit risk valuation adjustment was a reduction of derivative liabilities, net of less than $0.1 million and $0.3
million, respectively.

11. Income Taxes
Income Taxes

We and our subsidiaries, CenStar and Verde Energy USA, Inc. (“Verde Corp”) are each subject to U.S. federal income tax as corporations. CenStar and Verde Corp
file consolidated tax returns in jurisdictions that allow combined reporting. Spark HoldCo and its subsidiaries, with the exception of CenStar and Verde Corp, are
treated as flow-through entities for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and, as such, are generally not subject to U.S. federal income tax at the entity level. Rather,
the tax liability with respect to their taxable income is passed through to their members or partners. Accordingly, we are subject to U.S. federal income taxation on
our allocable share of Spark HoldCo’s net U.S. taxable income.

In our financial statements, we report federal and state income taxes for our share of the partnership income attributable to our ownership in Spark HoldCo and for
the income taxes attributable to CenStar and Verde Corp. Net income attributable to non-controlling interest includes the provision for income taxes related to
CenStar and Verde Corp.

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and the tax bases of the assets and liabilities. We apply existing tax
law and the tax rate that we expect to apply to taxable income in the years in which those differences are expected to be recovered or settled in calculating the
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Effects of changes in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in income in the period of the tax rate
enactment. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is not more likely than not that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will be realized.
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We periodically assess whether it is more likely than not that we will generate sufficient taxable income to realize our deferred income tax assets. In making this
determination, we consider all available positive and negative evidence and make certain assumptions. We consider, among other things, our deferred tax liabilities,
the overall business environment, our historical earnings and losses, current industry trends, and our outlook for future years. We believe it is more likely than not
that our deferred tax assets will be utilized, and accordingly have not recorded a valuation allowance on these assets.

As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we had a net deferred tax asset of $11.1 million $10.9 million, due in large part to the original step up in tax basis resulting
from the initial purchase of Spark HoldCo units from NuDevco Retail and NuDevco Retail Holdings (predecessor to Retailco) in connection with our initial public
offering.

The effective U.S. federal and state income tax rate for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 17.0%50.6% and 21.5% 18.6%,
respectively. The effective U.S. federal and state income tax rate for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 18.6% 21.0% and
20.8% 19.7%, respectively. The effective tax rate for three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 differed from the U.S. federal statutory tax
rate of 21% primarily due to state taxes and the benefit provided from Spark HoldCo operating as a limited liability company, which is treated as a partnership for
federal and state income tax purposes and is not subject to federal and state income taxes. Accordingly, the portion of earnings attributable to non-controlling
interest is subject to tax when reported as a component of the non-controlling interest holders’ taxable income.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, we may be involved in legal, tax, regulatory and other proceedings in the ordinary course of business. Liabilities for loss contingencies arising
from claims, assessments, litigation or other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably
estimated.

Legal Proceedings

Below is a summary of our currently pending material legal proceedings. We are subject to lawsuits and claims arising in the ordinary course of our business. The
following legal proceedings are in various stages and are subject to substantial uncertainties concerning the outcome of material factual and legal issues.
Accordingly, unless otherwise specifically noted, we cannot currently predict the manner and timing of the resolutions of these legal proceedings or estimate a range
of possible losses or a minimum loss that could result from an adverse verdict in a potential lawsuit. While the lawsuits and claims are asserted for amounts that
may be material should an unfavorable outcome occur, management does not currently expect that any currently pending matters will have a material adverse effect
on our financial position or results of operations.

Consumer Lawsuits

Similar to other energy service companies (‘ESCOs”) operating in the industry, from time-to-time, the Company is subject to class action lawsuits in various
jurisdictions where the Company sells natural gas and electricity.

On January 14, 2021, Glikin, et al. v. Major Energy Electric Services, LLC, a purported variable rate class action, was filed by a Maryland customer in the United
States District Court, Southern District of New York, attempting to represent a class of all Major Energy customers (including customers of companies Major Energy
acts as a successor to) in the United States charged a variable rate for electricity or gas by Major Energy during the applicable statute of limitations period up to and
including the date of judgment. The Company moved this case to the United States District Court for the District of Maryland (Case No. 1:21-cv-03251-MJM) and in
December 2023 filed a motion to dismiss the lawsuit. In September 2024, the Court granted the Company’s motion that argued that Glikin had failed to exhaust her
administrative remedies and that, if she wishes to proceed, she must first go to the Maryland Public Service Commission. The Company is vigorously defending this
matter; however, given the current early stage of this matter, we cannot predict the outcome of this case at this time.

On December 18, 2023, Foote v. Electricity N.H., LLC (“ENH"), a purported Telephone Consumer Protection Act (the “TCPA") class action, was filed in the United
States District Court for the District of New Hampshire. Plaintiff claims that calls made to her violated the TCPA. Plaintiff purports to assert claims on her own behalf
and a putative class of individuals to whom calls using a prerecorded or artificial voice message regarding ENH’s services were placed during the period of
September 1, 2019, through September 1, 2023. ENH only operates in New Hampshire and no other states. The Company denies Plaintiff's allegations and intends
to vigorously defend against her claims. This matter was dismissed, with prejudice in August 2024.

Corporate Matter Lawsuits

The Company may from time to time be subject to legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. Although there can be no assurance in this
regard, the Company does not expect any of those legal proceedings to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows or
financial condition.

On July 19, 2024, Joshua Amburgey, a purported stockholder of the Company at the time of the Merger, filed a verified class action complaint, Joshua Amburgey,
on behalf of himself and all others similarly situated v. Via Renewables, Inc., et al., Case No. 2024-0762-KSJM (Del. Ch.) (the “Amburgey Action”) in the Court of
Chancery of the State of Delaware (“Delaware Court”) against the Company and Amanda E. Bush, Stephen Kennedy and Kenneth Hartwick in their capacities as
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members of the Company’s Special Transaction Committee of the Board of Directors (“Special Committee”), as well as Mr. Maxwell, Retailco, LLC, TXEx Energy
Investments, LLC, Electric Holdco, LLC, NuDevco Retail Holdings, LLC and NuDevco Retail, LLC. Plaintiff alleges that the defendants

breached their fiduciary duties owed to the Company’s public stockholders in connection with the Merger.
The Company is vigorously defending this matter; however, given the current early stage of this matter, we cannot predict the outcome of this case at this time.

On July 25, 2024, Bruce Taylor, a purported stockholder of the Company at the time of the Merger, filed a verified class action complaint, Bruce Taylor v. W. Keith
Maxwell Ill, et al., Case No. 2024-0794 (Del. Ch.) (the “Taylor Action”) in the Delaware Court against the Special Committee, and Mike Barajas, in his capacity as
the Company'’s Chief Financial Officer, as well as Mr. Maxwell in his capacity as controlling stockholder of the Company. Plaintiff alleges that the defendants
breached their fiduciary duties and participated in the provision of a materially untrue and misleading proxy statement to Company’s minority stockholders in
connection with the Merger. The Company is vigorously defending this matter; however, given the current early stage of this matter, we cannot predict the outcome
of this case at this time.

On May 22, 2024, Michael Stutzman, a purported stockholder of the Company that previously delivered a Records Request, records request, filed a complaint,
Michael Stutzman v. Via Renewables, Inc., Case No. 2024-0545-LM (Del. Ch.) (the “220 Complaint”) in the Delaware Court against the Company. The 220
Complaint seeks to compel has now been converted into the inspection of certain Company books third

class-action complaint filed in Delaware Chancery Court that challenges the take-private transaction. The three shareholder complaints largely overlap, and records
pursuant to Section 220 of the Delaware General Corporation Law relevant Chancery Court has ordered the three plaintiffs and their counsel to choose one lead-
plaintiff to consolidate the Merger. cases. These matters are being vigorously defended; however, given the current early stage of this matter, we cannot predict the
outcome of these cases at this time.

Regulatory Matters

Many state regulators have increased scrutiny on retail energy providers, across all industry providers. We are subject to regular regulatory regulatory inquiries,
license renewal reviews, and preliminary investigations in the ordinary course of our business. Below is a summary of our currently pending material state regulatory
matters. The following state regulatory matters are in various stages and are subject to substantial uncertainties concerning the outcome of material factual and
legal issues. Accordingly, we cannot currently predict the manner and timing of the resolution of these state regulatory matters or estimate a range of possible
losses or a minimum loss that could result from an adverse action, unless expressly indicated below. Management does not currently expect that any currently
pending state regulatory matters will have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

Connecticut. On May 21, 2024, the Connecticut Public Utility Regulatory (“PURA”) issued a Notice of Violation and Assessment of Civil Penalty (“NOV”) to Major
Energy in which PURA stated it had reason to believe that one of Major Energy’s on-line vendors violated certain Electric Supplier Laws and Aggregator Rulings.
The Company worked cooperatively with PURA and has finalized a full and final settlement for $2.0 million, to be paid in three installments to the Connecticut
electric distribution companies as a donation to reduce Connecticut residential hardship customer arrearages. The settlement was approved by PURA in mid-July
2024 (and accrued as of June 30, 2024). The third and final installment will be paid in November 2024.

lllinois. On July 26, 2023, Spark Energy, LLC received a demand letter from a law firm representing the Office of the lllinois Attorney General alleging that Spark
Energy, LLC’s marketing and sales practices may have not been in compliance with lllinois law.The letter offered, in the interest of efficiency and minimizing litigation
costs, a settlement demand to resolve the matter. The Company has agreed to engage in mediation with the law firm to try to resolve this matter.The Company met
for an all-day mediation in August 2024.The Company is voluntarily working with the firm to reach a settlement, however, if settlement is unsuccessful, the Attorney
General could commence a lawsuit in lllinois against Spark Energy, LLC.

Maine. On February 9, 2023, Maine Commission’s Consumer Assistance and Safety Division (“Advocacy Staff”) filed a Request for Formal Investigation requesting
that the Maine Commission open a formal, enforcement investigation to review whether the Company’s subsidiary, Electricity Maine, LLC (EME), is in compliance
with the Maine Commission’s Rules. During a special deliberative session, the same day, the Maine Commission announced it would proceed with a formal
investigation of EME, which was noticed in a Notice of Enforcement Investigation

issued February 10, 2023 (Docket No. 2023-00024). The Company met with Advocacy Staff over the course of several months to address concerns. As a result, the
Company and the Advocacy Staff have agreed to a settlement in principle pursuant to which customers would receive certain limited refunds on their energy bill.
This settlement is pending, and On October 18, 2024, the Maine Commission approved EME’s proposed settlement.

Maryland.Maryland SB1, sponsored by Senator Augustine (D-Prince George’s County) and Delegate Crosby (D-St. Mary’s County), was signed into law in May
2024. In addition to new consumer protections, Maryland SB1 prohibits residential purchase of receivables (POR) for contracts executed or renewed after
December 31, 2024. The Maryland Commission Staff has proposed that contracts prior to January 1, 2025, should be eligible for grandfathered utility consolidated
billing (UCB) with POR until a post-POR form of UCB is required in place. However, due to approve technical limitations at the settlement. The Commission

did utilities, this interim accommodation may not approve be in place. Maryland SB1 has introduced significant uncertainty in the settlement and the Company is
working with Advocacy Staff to have the settlement offer reviewed further and approved. Maryland retail energy market. The Company is working to minimize
economic impacts of Maryland SB1 to the Company.
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Ohio.On August 14, 2024, the Public Utility Commission of Ohio (“PUCQ”) sent Major Energy a notice of probable non-compliance regarding approximately fifty-five
consumer complaints during the time period January 3, 2023 through April 12, 2024. The Company is working cooperatively with PUCO to resolve this matter,
provided its detailed response to the Commission probable non-compliance on October 24, 2024, and believes this matter will not have a material impact on the
Company.

lllinois. On July 26, 2023, Spark Energy, LLC received a demand letter from a law firm representing the Office of the Illinois Attorney General alleging that Spark
Energy, LLC’s marketing and sales practices may have not been in compliance with lllinois law. The letter offered, in the interest of efficiency and minimizing
litigation costs, a settlement demand to resolve the matter. The Company has agreed to engage in mediation with the law firm to try to resolve this matter. Mediation
is set for August 2024. The Company is voluntarily working with the firm, however, if settlement is unsuccessful, the Attorney General could commence a lawsuit in
lllinois against Spark Energy, LLC.

In addition to the matters disclosed above, in the ordinary course of business, the Company may from time to time be subject to regulators initiating informal reviews
or issuing subpoenas for information as means to evaluate the Company and its subsidiaries’ compliance with applicable laws, rule, regulations and practices.
Although there can be no assurance in this regard, the Company does not expect any of those regulatory reviews to have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

Indirect Tax Audits

We are undergoing various types of indirect tax audits spanning from years 2020 to 2024 for which additional liabilities may arise. At the time of filing these
consolidated financial statements, these indirect tax audits are at an early stage and subject to substantial uncertainties concerning the outcome of audit findings
and corresponding responses.

As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, we had accrued $9.3 million $10.8 million and $6.3 million, respectively, related to litigation and
regulatory matters and $0.7 million and $0.7 million, respectively, related to indirect tax audits. The outcome of each of these may result in additional expense.

13. Transactions with Affiliates
Transactions with Affiliates

We enter into transactions with and pay certain costs on behalf of affiliates that are commonly controlled in order to reduce risk, reduce administrative expense,
create economies of scale, create strategic alliances and supply goods and services to these related parties. We also sell and purchase natural gas and electricity
with affiliates. We present receivables and payables with the same affiliate on a net basis in the condensed consolidated balance sheets as all affiliate activity is with
parties under common control. Affiliated transactions include certain services to the affiliated companies associated with employee benefits provided through our
benefit plans, insurance plans, leased office space, administrative salaries, due diligence work, recurring management consulting, and accounting, tax, legal, or
technology services. Amounts billed are based on the services provided, departmental usage, or headcount, which are considered reasonable by management. As
such, the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include costs that have been incurred by us and then directly billed or allocated to affiliates,
as well as costs that have been incurred by our affiliates and then directly billed or allocated to us, and are recorded net in general and administrative expense on
the condensed consolidated statements of operations with a corresponding accounts receivable—affiliates or accounts payable—affiliates, respectively, recorded in
the condensed consolidated balance sheets. Transactions with affiliates for sales or purchases of natural gas and electricity are recorded in retail revenues, retail
cost of revenues, and net asset optimization revenues in the condensed consolidated statements of operations with a corresponding accounts receivable—affiliate
or accounts payable—affiliate are recorded in the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

The following tables presents asset and liability balances with affiliates (in thousands):

June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
Assets
Assets
Accounts Receivable - affiliates
Accounts Receivable - affiliates
Accounts Receivable - affiliates
Total Assets - affiliates
June 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
September 30, 2024 December 31, 2023
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Liabilities
Liabilities
Liabilities
Accounts Payable - affiliates
Accounts Payable - affiliates
Accounts Payable - affiliates

Subordinated Debt - affiliates ()

Total Liabilities - affiliates

(1) The Subordinated Debt Facility allows us to draw advances in increments of no less than $1.0 million per advance up to the maximum principal amount of the Subordinated Debt Facility, subject to
Retailco’s discretion. Advances thereunder accrue interest at an annual rate equal to the prime rate as published by the Wall Street Journal plus two percent (2.0%) from the date of the advance.
See Note 9 “Debt” for a further description of terms and conditions of the Subordinated Debt Facility.

The following table presents revenues and cost of revenues recorded in net asset optimization revenue associated with affiliates for the periods indicated (in
thousands):
Three Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
Three Months Ended September 30,
Three Months Ended September 30,
Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,

2024 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Revenue NAO - affiliates
Revenue NAO - affiliates
Revenue NAO - affiliates

Less: Cost of Revenue NAO - affiliates
Net NAO - affiliates
Net NAO - affiliates

Net NAO - affiliates
Cost Allocations

Where costs incurred on behalf of the affiliate or us cannot be determined by specific identification for direct billing, the costs are allocated to the affiliated entities or
us based on estimates of percentage of departmental usage, wages or headcount. The total net amount direct billed and allocated to/(from) affiliates was ($4.50.3
million) and $0.3 $(0.5) million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The total net amount direct billed and
allocated to/(from) affiliates was ($4.14.4 million) and $1.9 $1.4 million for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
Company would have incurred incremental costs of $0.3 million $0.5 million and $0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively, operating on a stand-alone basis. The Company would have incurred incremental costs of $0.6 $1.1 million and $0.8$1.2 million for the six nine
months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, operating on a stand-alone basis.

Distributions to and Contributions from Affiliates

During the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, Spark HoldCo made distributions to affiliates of Mr. Maxwell of zero for the payments
of quarterly distribution on their respective Spark HoldCo units. During the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, Spark HoldCo also
made distributions to these affiliates for gross-up distributions of $4.4 million zero and $0.6 $0.1 million, respectively, in connection with distributions made between
Spark HoldCo and Via Renewables, Inc. for payment of income taxes incurred by us.

During the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, Spark HoldCo made distributions to affiliates of Mr. Maxwell of zero and
$3.6 million, respectively, for the payments of quarterly distribution on their respective Spark HoldCo units. During the six nine months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, Spark HoldCo also made distributions to these affiliates for gross-up distributions of $4.5 million and $0.6 $0.7 million,
respectively, in connection with distributions made between Spark HoldCo and Via Renewables, Inc. for payment of income taxes incurred by us.

On June 13, 2024, we consummated the previously announced Merger, following which Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and
outstanding shares of the Company's Class A common stock and Class B common stock. For a more detailed description of the Merger, please see Note 2 “Basis
of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.
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As a result of the Merger, all of the Company’s outstanding restricted stock units were converted into $11.00 per share (other than those owned by Mr. Maxwell,
which were cancelled for no consideration). The total payout for the settlement of restricted stock units was $0.6 million, which was paid by Retailco. This was
recorded as contribution from non-controlling interest for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024.

14. Segment Reporting

Our determination of reportable business segments considers the strategic operating units under which we make financial decisions, allocate resources and assess
performance of our business. Our reportable business segments are retail electricity and retail natural gas. The retail electricity segment consists of electricity sales
and transmission to residential and commercial customers. The retail natural gas segment consists of natural gas sales to, and natural gas transportation and
distribution for, residential and commercial customers. Corporate and other consists of expenses and assets of the retail electricity and natural gas segments that
are managed at a consolidated level such as general and administrative expenses. Asset optimization activities and wireless services are also included in Corporate
and other.

For the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, we recorded asset optimization revenues of $3.2 million $2.9 million and $2.9 million and
asset optimization cost of revenues of $3.7 $3.4 million and $4.3 $3.8 million, respectively, and for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and
2023, we recorded asset optimization revenues of $14.7 million $17.5 million and $14.4 million $17.3 million and asset optimization cost of revenues of $16.8

million $20.1 million and $19.0 million $22.9 million, respectively, which are presented on a net basis in asset optimization revenues.

We use retail gross margin to assess the performance of our operating segments. We define retail gross margin as gross profit less (i) net asset optimization
(expenses) revenues, (ii) net (losses) gains on non-trading derivative instruments, (iii) net current period cash settlements on non-trading derivative instruments, and
(iv) gains (losses) from non-recurring events (including non-recurring market volatility).

We deduct net gains (losses) on non-trading derivative instruments, excluding current period cash settlements, from the retail gross margin calculation in order to
remove the non-cash impact of net gains and losses on these derivative instruments. We deduct net gains (losses) from non-recurring events (including non-
recurring market volatility) to ensure retail gross margin reflects operating performance that is not distorted by non-recurring events or extreme market volatility.
Retail gross margin should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, operating income (loss), as determined in accordance with GAAP.

Below is a reconciliation of retail gross margin to gross profit (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
June 30, June 30, September 30, September 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Retail Gross Margin to Gross
Profit

Total Revenue
Total Revenue
Total Revenue
Less:
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Gross Profit
Less:
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Net, gain (loss) on non-trading derivative
instruments

Net, loss on non-trading derivative instruments

Net, Cash settlements on non-trading
derivative instruments

Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin

Financial data for business segments are as follows (in thousands):
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Three Months Ended September 30,
Three Months Ended June 30, 2024

2024
Retail Retail Retail
Electricity | Electricity Retail Corporate Electricity Retail Corporate
(a) (a) Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated (a) Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated

Total revenues

Retail cost of revenues

Gross Profit (Loss)

Less:

Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Net, loss on non-trading
derivative instruments

Current period settlements on
non-trading derivatives

Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin

Total Assets at June 30, 2024
Goodwill at June 30, 2024

Total Assets at September 30,

2024

Goodwill at September 30,

2024

(a) Retail Electricity includes related services.

Three Months Ended September 30,

Three Months Ended June 30, 2023
2023

Retail Retail Retail Corporate Retail Retail Corporate
Electricity Electricity Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated Electricity Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated

Total revenues

Retail cost of revenues

Gross Profit (Loss)

Less:

Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Net, gain (loss) on non-trading
derivative instruments

Net, loss on non-trading derivative
instruments

Current period settlements on non-
trading derivatives

Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin

Total Assets at December 31,
2023

Goodwill at December 31, 2023

Nine Months Ended September 30,
Six Months Ended June 30, 2024 2024
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Electricity | Electricity

Total revenues

Retail cost of revenues

Gross Profit (Loss)

Less:

Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Net, (loss) gain on non-trading
derivatives

Net, loss on non-trading
derivatives

Current period settlements on
non-trading derivatives

Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin

Total Assets at June 30, 2024
Goodwill at June 30, 2024
Total Assets at September 30,
2024

Goodwill at September 30,
2024

Retail Retail

Retail Corporate
Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated

() ()

(a) Retail Electricity includes related services.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2023

Retail
Electricity
(@

Nine Months Ended September 30,

2023

Retail Corporate
Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated

Total revenues

Retail cost of revenues

Gross Profit (Loss)

Less:

Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Net, loss on non-trading
derivatives

Current period settlements on
non-trading derivatives

Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin

Total Assets at December 31,
2023

Goodwill at December 31, 2023

15. Customer Acquisitions

Acaquisition of Customer Books

Retail Retail Retail Corporate

Retail

Retail Corporate

Electricity Electricity Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated Electricity Natural Gas and Other Eliminations Consolidated
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In April 2024, we entered into an asset purchase agreement to acquire up to approximately 12,556 RCEsresidential customer equivalents ("RCEs") for a cash
purchase price of up to a maximum of $2.3 million. These customers began transferring in June of 2024, and are located in our existing markets. During the
sixthree and nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, approximately 3,600 7,100 and 10,700 RCEs were transferred.

As part of the acquisitions, we funded an escrow account, the balance of which is reflected as restricted cash in our consolidated balance sheet. As we acquire
customers, we make payments to the sellers from the escrow account. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, the balance in the escrow account was

$2.3$0.5 million, and these funds are expected to be released to the sellers as acquired customers transfer from the sellers to the Company in accordance with the
asset purchase agreement, and any unallocated balance will be returned to the Company once the acquisition is complete.

16. Stock Compensation
Restricted Stock Units

We maintained a Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") for employees, consultants and directors of the Company and its affiliates who perform services for the
Company. The purpose of the LTIP was to provide a means to attract and retain individuals to serve as directors, employees and consultants who provided services
to the Company by affording such individuals a means to acquire and maintain ownership of awards, the value of which was tied to the performance of the
Company'’s Class A common stock. The LTIP provided for grants of cash payments, stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock or units, bonus stock,
dividend equivalents, and other stock-based awards with the total number of shares of stock available for issuance under the LTIP not to exceed 2,750,000 shares.

Restricted stock units were granted to our officers, employees, non-employee directors and certain employees of our affiliates who performed services for the
Company and vested over approximately one year for non-employee directors and ratably over approximately one to four years for officers, employees, and
employees of affiliates, with the initial vesting date occurring in May of the subsequent year.

Merger and Delisting of Class A Common Stock

On June 13, 2024, we consummated the previously announced Merger, following which Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and
outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Effective as of the end of trading on June 13, 2024, the Class A common stock ceased to
trade on NASDAQ. For a more detailed description of the Merger, please see Note 2 “Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the
notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

As a result of the Merger, all of the Company’s outstanding restricted stock units were converted into $11.00 per share (other than those owned by Mr. Maxwell,
which were cancelled for no consideration). The total payout for the settlement of restricted stock units was $0.6 million, which was paid by Retailco. This was
recorded as contribution from non-controlling interest.

Total stock-based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2024 was $2.4 million, of which $1.7 million was recorded as accelerated expense due
to conversion as a result of merger transaction.

Equity Classified Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units issued to employees and officers of the Company were classified as equity awards. The fair value of the equity classified restricted stock units
was based on the Company’s Class A common stock price as of the grant date. The Company recognized stock based compensation expense of $2.3 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2024, of which $1.6 million was recorded as accelerated expense due to conversion as a result of the Merger. This expense was
recorded in general and administrative expense with a corresponding increase to additional paid in capital. The following table summarizes equity classified
restricted stock unit activity for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Number of Shares (in

thousands) Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
Unvested at December 31, 2023 136 $ 23.21
Granted 16 11.00
Dividend reinvestment issuances — —
Vested (88) 10.96
Forfeited (64) 11.00
Unvested at June 30, 2024 — $ —

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, 88,004 restricted stock units vested, with 33,883 shares of Class A common stock distributed to the holders of these units
and 54,121 shares of Class A common stock withheld by the Company to cover taxes owed on the vesting of such units. As of June 30, 2024, there was zero
unrecognized compensation cost related to the Company’s equity classified restricted stock units.
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Change in Control Restricted Stock Units

In 2018, the Company granted Change in Control Restricted Stock Units ("CIC RSUs") to certain officers that vest upon a "Change in Control", if certain conditions
are met. The terms of the CIC RSUs define a "Change in Control" to generally mean:

— the consummation of an agreement to acquire or tender offer for beneficial ownership by any person, of 50% or more of the combined voting power of our
outstanding voting securities entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, or by any person of 90% or more of the then total outstanding shares of
Class A common stock;

— individuals who constitute the incumbent board cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the board;

— consummation of certain reorganizations, mergers or consolidations or a sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets;

— approval by our stockholders of a complete liquidation or dissolution;

— apublic offering or series of public offerings by Retailco and its affiliates, as a selling shareholder group, in which their total interest drops below 10 million of
our total outstanding voting securities;

— adisposition by Retailco and its affiliates in which their total interest drops below 10 million of our total outstanding voting securities; or

— any other business combination, liquidation event of Retailco and its affiliates or restructuring of us which the Compensation Committee deems in its
discretion to achieve the principles of a Change in Control.

The CIC RSUs vested upon complete of the Merger. The equity classified restricted stock unit table above includes 16,465 CIC RSUs as the conditions for Change
in Control was met. The Company recognized $0.2 million stock compensation accelerated expense related to the CIC RSUs during the six months ended June 30,
2024.

Liability Classified Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock units issued to non-employee directors of the Company and employees of certain of our affiliates are classified as liability awards as the awards are
either to a) non-employee directors that allow for net settlement for the amount of withholding taxes dues upon vesting or b) to employees of certain affiliates of the
Company and are therefore not deemed to be employees of the Company. The fair value of the liability classified restricted stock units is based on the Company’s
Class A common stock price as of the reported period ending date. The Company recognized stock based compensation expense of $0.1 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2024, of which less than $0.1 million was recorded as accelerated expense due to conversion as a result of Merger. The following table summarizes
liability classified restricted stock unit activity for the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Number of Shares (in Weighted Average Reporting Date Fair
thousands) Value
Unvested at December 31, 2023 17 $ 9.4
Granted — _
Dividend reinvestment issuances — —
Vested (8) 10.96
Forfeited 9) 11.00
Unvested at June 30, 2024 — $ —

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, 7,588 restricted stock units vested, with 7,588 shares of Class A common stock distributed to the holders of these units
and zero shares of Class A shares withheld by the Company to cover taxes owed on the vesting of such units. As of June 30, 2024, there was zero unrecognized
compensation cost related to the Company'’s liability classified restricted stock units.

17. Subsequent Events
Declaration of Dividends

On July 17, 2024 October 16, 2024, we declared a quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.75881 $0.71847 per share to holders of record of the Series A
Preferred Stock on October 1, 2024 January 1, 2025. The dividend will be paid on October 15, 2024 January 15, 2025.

Acquisition of Customer Books

In October 2024, we entered into two asset purchase agreements to acquire up to 100,600 RCEs for a cash purchase price of up to a maximum $16.9 million paid
in cash or funded into escrow accounts. These customers are located in our existing markets and will begin transferring in December of 2024 and January of 2025.

As we acquire customers under these acquisition agreements, we will make payments to the sellers from the escrow account. Funds from the escrow account will

be released to the sellers as acquired customers transfer from the sellers to the Company in accordance with the asset purchase agreement, and any unallocated
balance will be returned to the Company once the acquisitions are complete.
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Amendment to the Spark HoldCo Agreement

On October 30, 2024, the Company entered into Amendment No. 3 (the “Amendment”) to the Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of
Spark HoldCo, dated as of March 15, 2017, as amended (the “Third Restated LLC Agreement”), by and among the Company, Spark HoldCo, and Retailco, LLC.
The Amendment amends the Third Restated LLC Agreement to generally permit the managing members to make non pro rata distributions to the members of
Spark Holdco (which are the Company and Retailco, LLC). The terms of the Amendment were unanimously approved by our Board of Directors.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Report and the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and management's discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of operations included in our 2023 Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 29, 2024. Results
of operations and cash flows for the three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 are not necessarily indicative of results to be attained for any other period.
See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors.”

Overview

We are an independent retail energy services company founded in 1999 and are organized as a Delaware corporation that provides residential and commercial
customers in competitive markets across the United States with an alternative choice for natural gas and electricity. We purchase our electricity and natural gas
supply from a variety of wholesale providers and bill our customers monthly for the delivery of electricity and natural gas based on their consumption at either a fixed
or variable price. Electricity and natural gas are then distributed to our customers by local regulated utility companies through their existing infrastructure. As of June
30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we operated in 105 103 utility service territories across 20 states and the District of Columbia.

Our business consists of two operating segments:

* Retail Electricity Segment. In this segment, we purchase electricity supply through physical and financial transactions with market counterparties and ISOs
and supply electricity to residential and commercial consumers pursuant to fixed-price and variable-price contracts. For the three months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately 82% 88% and 81% 89%, respectively, of our retail revenues were derived from the sale of electricity.

* Retail Natural Gas Segment. In this segment, we purchase natural gas supply through physical and financial transactions with market counterparties and
supply natural gas to residential and commercial consumers pursuant to fixed-price and variable-price contracts. For the three months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately 18% 12% and 19% 11%, respectively, of our retail revenues were derived from the sale of natural gas.

Recent Developments
Merger Acquisition of Customer Books

In October, 2024, we entered into two asset purchase agreements to acquire up to 100,600 RCEs for a cash purchase price of up to a maximum $16.9 million paid
in cash or funded into escrow accounts. These customers are located in our existing markets and Delisting will begin transferring in December of Class A Common
Stock 2024 and January of 2025.

As we acquire customers under these acquisition agreements, we will make payments to the sellers from the escrow account. Funds from the escrow account will
be released to the sellers as acquired customers transfer from the sellers to the Company in accordance with the asset purchase agreement, and any unallocated
balance will be returned to the Company once the acquisitions are complete.

Amendment to the Spark HoldCo Agreement

On June 13, 2024, we consummated the previously announced Merger, following which Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and
outstanding shares of Class A common stock and Class B common stock. Effective as of the end of trading on June 13, 2024, the Class A common stock ceased to
trade on NASDAQ. For a more detailed description of the Merger, please see Note 2 “Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in the
notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Optional Limited Change of Control Conversion Right for Series A Preferred Stock

As a result of the Merger, holders of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock were provided an optional limited Conversion Right, available at the option of the
holder, for $8.07 per share in cash. On June 27, 2024 October 30, 2024, the Company provided notice entered into Amendment No. 3 (the “Amendment”) to the
holders Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Spark HoldCo, dated as of March 15, 2017, as amended (the “Third Restated LLC
Agreement”), by and among the Company, Spark HoldCo, and Retailco, LLC. The Amendment amends the Third Restated LLC Agreement to generally permit the
managing members to make non pro rata distributions to the members of Spark Holdco (which are the Company and Retailco, LLC). The terms of the Series A
Preferred Stock Amendment were unanimously approved by our Board of the Conversion Right. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock were entitled to exercise
the Conversion Right through July 26, 2024.
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First Amendment to Senior Credit Facility

On June 28, 2024, we entered into the First Amendment (the “First Amendment”) to our senior credit facility (as amended by the First Amendment, the “Senior
Credit Facility”). The First Amendment, among other things, increased the borrowing capacity to $205.0 million and extended the maturity date to June 30, 2027. For
a more detailed description of the Senior Credit Facility, please see Note 9 “Debt” in the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements. Directors.

Residential Customer Equivalents

We measure our number of customers using residential customer equivalents (“RCEs”). The following table shows our RCEs by segment during the three and
six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024:

RCEs:

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

March 31, June 30, % Increase September 30, % Increase
(In thousands) 2024 Additions Attrition 2024 (Decrease) June 30, 2024 Additions Attrition 2024 (Decrease)
Retail

Retail Electricity Retail Electricity 220 25 27 218 1)% Electricity 218 17 27 208 (5)%
Retail Natural ~ Retail Natural Retail Natural
Gas Gas 118 10 8 120 2% Gas 120 13 120 —%
Total Retail  Total Retail 338 35 338 —% Total Retail 338 30 40 328 (3)%
RCEs:
RCEs:
RCEs:
(In thousands)
(In thousands)

December 31, June 30, % Increase December 31, September 30, % Increase
(In thousands) 2023 Additions Attrition 2024 (Decrease) 2023 Additions Attrition 2024 (Decrease)
Retail Retail
Electricity Electricity 217 57 56 218 —% Retail Electricity 217 74 83 208 (4)%
Retail Natural ~ Retail Natural Retail Natural
Gas Gas 118 19 17 120 2% Gas 118 32 30 120 2%
Total Retail  Total Retail 335 76 73 338 1% Total Retail 335 106 113 328 (2)%

The following table details our count of RCEs by geographical location as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024:
RCEs by Geographic
Location:

(In thousands)

(In thousands)

% of Natural % of % of % of % of

(In thousands) Electricity Total Gas Total Total Total Electricity Total Natural Gas % of Total Total Total
New New

New England England 61 28% 12 10% 73 22%  England 56 27% 12 10% 68 21%
Mid-Atlantic Mid-Atlantic 102 47% 52 43% 154 46%  Mid-Atlantic 98 47% 51 43% 149 45%
Midwest Midwest 19 9% 23 19% 42 12%  Midwest 19 9% 24 20% 43 13%
Southwest Southwest 36 16% 33 28% 69 20%  Southwest 35 17% 33 27% 68 21%
Total Total 218 100% 120 100% 338 100% Total 208  100% 120 100% 328 100%

The geographical locations noted above include the following states:

* New England - Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts and New Hampshire;
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* Mid-Atlantic - Delaware, Maryland (including the District of Columbia), New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania and Virginia;
* Midwest - lllinois, Indiana, Michigan and Ohio; and
* Southwest - Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Nevada and Texas.

Across our market areas, we have operated under a number of different retail brands. We currently operate under six retail brands.
Drivers of Our Business

The success of our business and our profitability are impacted by a number of drivers, the most significant of which are discussed below.
Customer Growth

Customer growth is a key driver of our operations. Our ability to acquire customers organically or by acquisition is important to our success as we experience
ongoing customer attrition. Our customer growth strategy includes growing organically through traditional sales channels complemented by customer portfolio and
business acquisitions.

During the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we added approximately 31,400 22,900 RCEs primarily through our various organic sales
channels. Although we expect to continue to acquire customers organically in the future, our sales rate is dependent on market conditions and may slow in future
periods.

In April 2024, we entered into an asset purchase agreement to acquire up to approximately 12,556 RCEs for a cash purchase price of up to a maximum of

$2.3 million. These customers began transferring in the second quarter of 2024, and are located in our existing markets. During the three months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024, we added 3,6007,100 RCEs as a result of the asset purchase agreement. Our ability to realize returns from acquisitions that are
acceptable to us is dependent on our ability to successfully identify, negotiate, finance and integrate acquisitions. We will continue to evaluate potential acquisitions
during the remainder of 2024.

While we remain focused on organic sales and identifying customer portfolio and business acquisitions, we cannot ensure that our RCE count will remain at current
levels or grow. Our RCE count, as well as the margins we earn on our customers, contribute to our overall profitability, cash flow and ability to pay dividends.

Customer Acquisition Costs

Managing customer acquisition costs is a key component of our profitability. Customer acquisition costs are those costs related to obtaining customers organically
and do not include the cost of acquiring customers through acquisitions, which are recorded as customer relationships.

Customer Attrition

Customer attrition occurs primarily as a result of: (i) customer initiated switches; (i) residential moves; (iii) disconnection resulting from customer payment defaults;
and (iv) proactive non-renewal of contracts. Average monthly customer attrition for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was
3.4%4.1% and 3.1%, respectively. Our customer attrition was consistent with the higher than prior year. year primarily driven by proactive non-renewals in New York
due to regulatory changes.

Customer Credit Risk

Our credit loss expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 2.1% 1.4% and 2.4% 1.3%, respectively, and our credit loss
expense for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 1.4% and 2.1% 1.8% respectively, for non-purchase of receivable market
("non-POR") revenues. As the Company has increased sales activities in non-POR markets and focused on collection efforts, we have experienced a decrease an
increase in credit loss expense during the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

Gross Profit

The profit earned between the price we are able to charge customers for retail electricity and natural gas and the cost to serve customers is a key component of the
results of our operations. Prices we are able to charge customers for retail electricity and natural gas vary with market conditions, and are subject to regulatory
restrictions in many of the markets we serve. Costs to serve customers are tied closely to gas and power commodity markets, which exposes us to significant
variability and uncertainties.

Weather Conditions
Weather conditions directly influence the demand for natural gas and electricity and affect the prices of energy commodities. Our hedging strategy is based on

forecasted customer energy usage, which can vary substantially as a result of weather patterns deviating from historical norms. We are particularly sensitive to this
variability in our residential customer segment where energy usage is highly sensitive to weather conditions that impact heating and cooling demand.
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Asset Optimization

Our asset optimization opportunities primarily arise during the winter heating season when demand for natural gas is typically at its highest. Given the opportunistic
nature of these activities and because we account for these activities using the mark to market method of accounting, we experience variability in our earnings from
our asset optimization activities from year to year.

Net asset optimization resulted in a loss of $0.5 million and a loss of $1.4 $0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and three
months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023, respectively. Net asset optimization resulted in a loss of $2.1 million $2.6 million and a loss of $4.6 million $5.6
million for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and six nine months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023, respectively.

Non-GAAP Performance Measures

We use the Non-GAAP performance measures of Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin to evaluate and measure our operating results as follows:

Three Months Ended June Six Months Ended June Three Months Ended September Nine Months Ended September
30, 30, 30, 30,
(in
(in thousands) thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Adjusted EBITDA

@

Retail Gross

Margin

(1) Adjusted EBITDA for three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 includes an add back of $1.1 million $0.5 million and $1.5 million $2.0 million, respectively, related to
merger agreement expense.

Adjusted EBITDA. We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as EBITDA less (i) customer acquisition costs incurred in the current period, plus or minus (ii) net (loss) gain on
derivative instruments, and (iii) net current period cash settlements on derivative instruments, plus (iv) non-cash compensation expense, and (v) other non-cash and
non-recurring operating items. EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before the provision for income taxes, interest expense and depreciation and amortization.
This conforms to the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA in our Senior Credit Facility.

We deduct all current period customer acquisition costs (representing spending for organic customer acquisitions) in the Adjusted EBITDA calculation because such
costs reflect a cash outlay in the period in which they are incurred, even though we capitalize and amortize such costs over two years. We do not deduct the cost of
customer acquisitions through acquisitions of businesses or portfolios of customers in calculating Adjusted EBITDA.

We deduct our net gains (losses) on derivative instruments, excluding current period cash settlements, from the Adjusted EBITDA calculation in order to remove the
non-cash impact of net gains and losses on these instruments. We also deduct non-cash compensation expense that results from the issuance of restricted stock
units under our long-term incentive plan due to the non-cash nature of the expense.

We adjust from time to time other non-cash or unusual and/or infrequent charges due to either their non-cash nature or their infrequency. We have historically
included the financial impact of weather variability in the calculation of Adjusted EBITDA.

We believe that the presentation of Adjusted EBITDA provides information useful to investors in assessing our liquidity and financial condition and results of
operations and that Adjusted EBITDA is also useful to investors as a financial indicator of our ability to incur and service debt, pay dividends and fund capital
expenditures. Adjusted EBITDA is a supplemental financial measure that management and external users of our consolidated financial statements, such as industry
analysts, investors, commercial banks and rating agencies, use to assess the following:

« our operating performance as compared to other publicly traded companies in the retail energy industry, without regard to financing methods, capital
structure, historical cost basis and specific items not reflective of ongoing operations;

« the ability of our assets to generate earnings sufficient to support our proposed cash dividends;

« our ability to fund capital expenditures (including customer acquisition costs) and incur and service debt; and

« our compliance with financial debt covenants. (Refer to Note 9 “Debt” to Part I, Item 1 of this Report for discussion of the material terms of our Senior Credit
Facility, including the covenant requirements for our Minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio and Maximum Total Leverage Ratio, and Maximum Senior
Secured Leverage Ratio.) Ratio)

The GAAP measures most directly comparable to Adjusted EBITDA are net income (loss) and net cash provided by (used in) operating activities. The following
table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to these GAAP measures for each of the periods indicated.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
June 30, June 30, September 30, September 30,
(in
(in thousands) thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023
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Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to
net income:

Net income
Net income
Net income
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Income tax expense
EBITDA
Less:
Net, gain (loss) on derivative instruments
Net, gain (loss) on derivative instruments
Net, gain (loss) on derivative instruments
Net, loss on derivative instruments
Net, loss on derivative instruments
Net, loss on derivative instruments

Net cash settlements on derivative
instruments

Customer acquisition costs
Plus:
Non-cash compensation expense
Non-cash compensation expense
Non-cash compensation expense
Merger agreement expense
Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA
The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net cash provided by operating activities for each of the periods indicated.

Three Months Six Months Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
Ended June 30, Ended June 30, September 30, September 30,

(in
(in thousands) thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Amortization of deferred financing costs

Bad debt expense

Interest expense

Income tax expense

Merger agreement expense

Changes in operating working capital

Changes in operating working capital
Accounts receivable, prepaids, current assets

Changes in operating working capital
Accounts receivable, prepaids, current assets
Accounts receivable, prepaids, current assets
Accounts receivable, prepaids, current assets
Inventory

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
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Other
Adjusted EBITDA
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Retail Gross Margin. We define retail gross margin as gross profit less (i) net asset optimization revenues (expenses), (ii) net gains (losses) on non-trading
derivative instruments, (iii) net current period cash settlements on non-trading derivative instruments and (iv) gains (losses) from non-recurring events (including
non-recurring market volatility). Retail gross margin is included as a supplemental disclosure because it is a primary performance measure used by our
management to determine the performance of our retail natural gas and electricity segments as a result of recurring operations. As an indicator of our retail energy
business’s operating performance, retail gross margin should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than, gross profit, its most directly comparable
financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP.

We believe retail gross margin provides information useful to investors as an indicator of our retail energy business’s operating performance.

The GAAP measure most directly comparable to Retail Gross Margin is gross profit. The following table presents a reconciliation of Retail Gross Margin to gross
profit for each of the periods indicated.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
June 30, June 30, September 30, September 30,

(in
(in thousands) thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023 (in thousands) 2024 2023 2024 2023

Reconciliation of Retail Gross Margin to
Gross Profit

Total Revenue
Total Revenue
Total Revenue
Less:
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Gross Profit
Less:
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense
Net asset optimization expense

Gain (loss) on non-trading derivative
instruments

Loss on non-trading derivative
instruments

Cash settlements on non-trading
derivative instruments

Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin
Retail Gross Margin

Retail Gross Margin - Retail Electricity
Segment

Retail Gross Margin - Retail Natural Gas
Segment

Retail Gross Margin - Other
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Our non-GAAP financial measures of Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin should not be considered as alternatives to gross profit. Adjusted EBITDA and
Retail Gross Margin are not presentations made in accordance with GAAP and have limitations as analytical tools. You should not consider Adjusted EBITDA or
Retail Gross Margin in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Because Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin exclude
some, but not all, items that affect gross profit, and are defined differently by different companies in our industry, our definition of Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross

Margin may not be comparable to similarly titted measures of other companies.

Management compensates for the limitations of Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin as analytical tools by reviewing the comparable GAAP measures,
understanding the differences between the measures and incorporating these data points into management’s decision-making process.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023

Three Months
(In Thousands) (In Thousands) Ended June 30,

Ended June 30, Thousands)

Nine Months

Three Months Ended Ended September

30,

2024 2024
Revenues:
Retail revenues
Retail revenues
Retail revenues

Net asset
optimization expense

Other revenue

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues
Retail cost of revenues

General and
administrative
expense

Depreciation and
amortization

Total Operating
Expenses

Operating income

Other
(expense)/income:

Interest expense
Interest expense
Interest expense

Interest and
other income

Total other expense

Income before income
tax expense

Income tax expense
Net income

Other Performance
Metrics:

Adjusted EBITDA ) 2
Adjusted EBITDA () )
Adjusted EBITDA )

Retail Gross Margin @)
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Customer Acquisition

Costs
Average
Average Monthly RCE ~ Average Monthly Monthly RCE
Attrition RCE Attrition 34 % 3.1% 36 % 3.5 % Attrition 4.1 % 31 % 3.8 % 3.5 %

(1) Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin are non-GAAP financial measures. See “ — Non-GAAP Performance Measures” for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA and Retail Gross Margin to their
most directly comparable GAAP financial measures.

(2) Adjusted EBITDA for the three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 includes an add back of $1.1 million $0.5 million and $1.5 million $2.0 million, respectively, related to
merger agreement expense.

Total Revenues. Total revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 were approximately $86.7 million $93.8 million, a decrease of
approximately $4.7 million $16.4 million, or 5% 15%, from approximately $91.4 million $110.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023,
as indicated in the table below (in millions). This decrease was primarily due to lower electricity volumes sold as a result of smaller electricity book and lower
electricity rates in the third quarter of 2024 as compared to the third quarter of 2023.

Change in electricity volumes sold $ (10.1)
Change in natural gas volumes sold (0.8)
Change in electricity unit revenue per MWh (5.1)
Change in natural gas unit revenue per MMBtu 0.6
Change in other revenue (1.5)
Change in net asset optimization expense 0.5
Change in total revenues $ (16.4)

Retail Cost of Revenues. Total retail cost of revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $68.6 million, a decrease of
approximately $2.5 million, or 4%, from approximately $71.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).
This decrease was primarily due to a lower electricity volumes sold as a result of smaller electricity book and lower electricity unit cost in the third quarter of 2024 as
compared to the third quarter of 2023, partially offset by change in value of our retail derivative portfolio.

Change in electricity volumes sold $ (7.4)
Change in natural gas volumes sold (0.5)
Change in electricity unit cost per MWh (6.4)
Change in natural gas unit cost per MMBtu (0.1)
Change in other costs (0.6)
Change in value of retail derivative portfolio 12.5
Change in retail cost of revenues $ (2.5)

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $17.7 million, an
increase of approximately $0.6 million, or 4%, as compared to $17.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. This increase was primarily
attributable to an increase in legal and regulatory expense in the third quarter of 2024 compared to the third quarter of 2023.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $2.5 million,
an increase of approximately $0.7 million, or 39%, from approximately $1.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. This increase was primarily due
to an increased amortization expense associated with customer intangibles.

Customer Acquisition Cost. Customer acquisition cost for the three months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $2.1 million, an increase of
approximately $0.4 million, or 24% from approximately $1.7 million three months ended September 30, 2023, primarily due to an increase in the sales activity in the
third quarter of 2024 as compared to the third quarter of 2023.

Nine months ended September 30, 2024 Compared to Nine months ended September 30, 2023

Total Revenues. Total revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 were approximately $294.5 million, a decrease of approximately $39.0 million, or

12%, from approximately $333.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions). This decrease was primarily

due to lower electricity and gas unit revenue as a result of decreased electricity and gas rates, partially offset by an increase a decrease in electricity volumes sold
innet asset optimization expense during the second quarter first nine months of 2024 as compared to the second quarter first nine months of 2023.
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Change in electricity volumes sold $ 2.6

Change in natural gas volumes sold 3.9)
Change in electricity unit revenue per MWh (26.9)
Change in natural gas unit revenue per MMBtu (13.6)
Change in other revenue (0.1)
Change in net asset optimization expense 2.9
Change in total revenues $ (39.0)

Retail Cost of Revenues. Total retail cost of revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $180.6 million, a decrease of
approximately $53.8 million, or 23%, from approximately $234.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).
This decrease was primarily due to lower electricity and gas costs due to a lower commaodity price environment in 2024, and a change in the value of our retail
derivative portfolio during the first nine months of 2024 as compared to the first nine months of 2023.

Change in electricity volumes sold $ 5219

Change in natural gas volumes sold —

Change in electricity unit revenue per MWh (8.9)
Change in natural gas unit revenue per MMBtu (2.1)
Change in other revenue 0.3
Change in net asset optimization expense 0.8
Change in total revenues $ 4.7)

Retail Cost of Revenues. Total retail cost of revenues for the three months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $43.0 million, a decrease of approximately $2.9
million, or 6%, from approximately $45.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions). This decrease was primarily
due to a decrease in electricity and gas unit cost, partially offset by an increase in electricity volumes sold in the second quarter of 2024 as compared to the second
quarter of 2023, and a change in value of our retail derivative portfolio.

Change in electricity volumes sold $ 3.8
Change in natural gas volumes sold 0.1 (2.4)
Change in electricity unit cost per MWh (9.6)
Change in natural gas unit cost per MMBtu (2.5)
Change in other costs 0.1
Change in value of retail derivative portfolio 5.2
Change in retail cost of revenues $ 2.9)

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $20.9 million, an increase
of approximately $4.2 million, or 25%, as compared to $16.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This increase was primarily attributable to an
increase in stock compensation expense and legal fees, both of which were related to the Merger in the second quarter of 2024, and an increase in legal and
regulatory expense in the second quarter of 2024 compared to the second quarter of 2023.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $2.2 million, an
increase of approximately $0.2 million, or 10%, from approximately $2.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This increase was primarily due to an
increased amortization expense associated with customer intangibles.

Customer Acquisition Cost. Customer acquisition cost for the three months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $2.6 million, an increase of approximately $1.1
million, or 73% from approximately $1.5 million three months ended June 30, 2023, primarily due to an increase in the sales activity in the second quarter of 2024 as
compared to the second quarter of 2023.

Six months ended June 30, 2024 Compared to Six months ended June 30, 2023

Total Revenues. Total revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2024 were approximately $200.8 million, a decrease of approximately $22.5 million, or 10%, from
approximately $223.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions). This decrease was primarily due to lower
electricity and gas unit revenue as a result of decreased electricity and gas rates, partially offset by an increase in electricity volumes sold in the first half of 2024 as
compared to the first half of 2023.
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Change in electricity volumes sold $ 13.9

Change in natural gas volumes sold (3.0)
Change in electricity unit revenue per MWh (23.0)
Change in natural gas unit revenue per MMBtu (14.3)
Change in other revenue 1.4
Change in net asset optimization expense 2.5
Change in total revenues $ (22.5)

Retail Cost of Revenues. Total retail cost of revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $112.0 million, a decrease of approximately $51.4
million, or 31%, from approximately $163.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions). This decrease was primarily
due to a change in the value of our retail derivative portfolio and lower electricity and gas costs. The decrease was partially offset by an increase in electricity
volumes sold in the first half of 2024 as compared to the first half of of 2023.

Change in electricity volumes sold $ 10.0
Change in natural gas volumes sold 1.8)
Change in electricity unit cost per MWh (19.8) (25.6)
Change in natural gas unit cost per MMBtu (12.2)
Change in other costs 0.70.2
Change in value of retail derivative portfolio (28.3) (15.7)
Change in retail cost of revenues $ (51.4) (53.8)

General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately
$38.2 million $55.9 million, an increase of approximately $4.3 million $4.8 million, or 13% 9%, as compared to $33.9 million $51.1 million for the six nine months
ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023. This increase was primarily attributable to an increase in stock compensation expense and legal fees, both of which
were related to the Merger in 2024, and an increase in legal and regulatory expense in the first halfnine months of 2024 compared to the first half nine months of
2023.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was
approximately $4.3 million $6.8 million, a decrease of approximately $1.0 million $0.3 million, or 19% 4%, from approximately $5.3 million $7.1 million for the sixnine
months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to the decreased amortization expense associated with customer relationship
intangibles.

Customer Acquisition Cost. Customer acquisition cost for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $5.0 million $7.1 million,
an increase of approximately $1.8 million $2.1 million, or 52% 42%, from approximately $3.3 million $5.0 million for the six nine months ended June 30,

2023 September 30, 2023. This increase was primarily due to increased sales activity in the first half nine months of 2024 as compared to first half nine months of of
2023.

Operating Segment Results

Six Months Three Months Nine Months
(in thousands, except volume  (in thousands, except volume  Three Months Ended June (in thousands, except volume Ended September Ended September
and per unit operating data)  and per unit operating data) Ended June 30, 30, and per unit operating data) 30, 30,

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Retail Electricity Segment

Retail Electricity Segment

Retail Electricity Segment

Total Revenues

Total Revenues

Total Revenues

Retail Cost of Revenues

Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements

Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements
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Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements

Retail Gross Margin @) — Electricity

Retail Gross Margin @) — Electricity

Retail Gross Margin @) — Electricity

Volumes — Electricity

(MWhs)

Retail Gross Margin @) —

Electricity per MWh

Retail Natural Gas Segment

Retail Natural Gas Segment

Retail Natural Gas Segment

Total Revenues

Total Revenues

Total Revenues

Retail Cost of Revenues

Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements

Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements

Less: Net gain (loss) on non-trading derivatives, net of
cash settlements

Retail Gross Margin @) —

Gas

Volumes — Gas (MMBtus)

Retail Gross Margin @) —

Gas per MMBtu

(1) Reflects the Retail Gross Margin attributable to our Retail Electricity Segment or Retail Natural Gas Segment, as applicable. Retail Gross Margin is a non-GAAP financial measure. See “Non-GAAP

Performance Measures” for a reconciliation of Retail Gross Margin to most directly comparable financial measures presented in accordance with GAAP.
(2) Reflects the Retail Gross Margin for the Retail Electricity Segment or Retail Natural Gas Segment, as applicable, divided by the total volumes in MWh or MMBLu, respectively.

Three Months Ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023

Retail Electricity Segment

Total revenues for the Retail Electricity Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 were approximately $71.1 million $82.6 million, a
decrease of approximately $3.7 million $15.2 million, or 5% 16%, from approximately $74.8 million $97.8 million for the three months ended June 30,

2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was largely due to lower electricity volumes of $10.1 million as a result of a smaller electricity customer book as compared
to the third quarter of 2023 and lower electricity prices, which resulted in a decrease of $8.9 million, partially offset by an increase in electricity volumes of $5.2
million as a result of a larger electricity customer book as compared to the second quarter of 2023. $5.1 million.

Retail cost of revenues for the Retail Electricity Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 were approximately $37.1 million $63.3
million, a decrease of approximately $0.5 million $1.2 million, or 1% 2%, from approximately $37.6 million $64.5 million for the three months ended June 30,

2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to lower volumes due to a smaller electricity customer book, resulting in a decrease of $7.4 million, a
decrease in electricity costs, resulting in a decrease of $9.6 million $6.4 million, partially offset by higher volumes due to a larger electricity customer book, resulting
in an increase of $3.8 million and a change in the fair value of our retail derivative portfolio used for hedging, which resulted in a increase of $5.4 million $12.6
million.

Retail gross margin for the Retail Electricity Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $25.3 million $24.6 million,
an increase a decrease of approximately $2.3 million $1.4 million, or 5%, from approximately $26.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, as
indicated in the table below (in millions).

Change in volumes sold $ 2.7)
Change in unit margin per MWh LS
Change in retail electricity segment retail gross margin $ (1.4)

Retail Natural Gas Segment
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Total revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended September 30, 2024 were approximately $11.6 million, a decrease of approximately
$0.3 million, or 2%, from approximately $11.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023. This decrease was attributable to lower gas volumes sold of
0.8 million, offset by higher natural gas prices, which increased total revenues by $0.6 million.

Retail cost of revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended September 30, 2024 were approximately $5.2 million, a decrease of $0.6
million, or 10%, from approximately $23.0 million $5.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to
lower natural gas volumes, resulting in a decrease of 0.5 million.

Retail gross margin for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended September 30, 2024 was approximately $5.5 million, an increase of
approximately $0.3 million, or 6%, from approximately $5.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).

Change in volumes sold $ 1.6
Change in unit margin per MWh 0.7
Change in retail electricity segment retail gross margin $ 2.3

Retail Natural Gas Segment

Total revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 were approximately $15.8 million, a decrease of approximately $2.1
million, or 12%, from approximately $17.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This decrease was attributable to lower natural gas prices, which
decreased total revenues by $2.1 million.

Retail cost of revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 were approximately $5.7 million, a decrease of $2.6 million, or
31%, from approximately $8.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to lower natural gas costs, which resulted in a
decrease of $2.5 million and a change in the fair value of our retail derivative portfolio used for hedging, which resulted in a decrease of $0.2 million.

Retail gross margin for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the three months ended June 30, 2024 was approximately $8.0 million, an increase of approximately
$0.4 million, or 5%, from approximately $7.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).

Change in volumes sold $ — (0.4)
Change in unit margin per MMBtu 0.40.7
Change in retail natural gas segment retail gross margin $ 0.40.3

Six Nine Months Ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 Compared to Six Nine Months Ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023

Retail Electricity Segment

Total revenues for the Retail Electricity Segment for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 were approximately $148.5 million $231.1 million,
a decrease of approximately $9.1 million $24.3 million, or 6% 10%, from approximately $157.6 million $255.4 million for the six nine months ended June 30,

2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was largely due to lower electricity prices, resulting in a decrease of $23.0 million $26.9 million, partially offset by higher
volumes, resulting in an increase of $13.9 million $2.6 million.

Retail cost of revenues for the Retail Electricity Segment for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $86.3 million $149.6
million, a decrease of approximately $32.1 million $33.4 million, or 27% 18%, from approximately $118.4 million $183.0 million for the six nine months ended June
30, 2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease inlower electricity costs of $19.8 million $25.6 million due to a lower commodity price
environment in 2024, a change in the value of our derivative portfolio used for hedging resulting in a decrease of $22.3 million $9.7 million, partially offset by an
increase in electricity volumes sold resulting in an increase of $10.0 million $1.9 million.

Retail gross margin for the Retail Electricity Segment for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $44.2 million $68.8
million, an increase a decrease of approximately $0.7 million, or 2% 1%, from approximately $43.5 million $69.5 million for the six nine months ended June 30,
2023 September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).

Change in volumes sold $ 3.80.7
Change in unit margin per MWh (3.1)(1.4)
Change in retail electricity segment retail gross margin $ 0.7 (0.7)

Retail Natural Gas Segment

Total revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 were approximately $52.9 million $64.5 million,
a decrease of approximately $17.3 million $17.5 million, or 25% 21%, from approximately $70.2 million $82.0 million for the sixnine months ended June 30,
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2023 September 30, 2023. This decrease was attributable to lower rates, which resulted in a decrease in total revenues of $14.3 million $13.6 million and a decrease
in volumes as a result of a smaller natural gas customer book resulting in a decrease of $3.0 million $3.9 million.

Retail cost of revenues for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the sixnine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $24.9 million $30.1
million, a decrease of approximately $20.0 million $20.6 million, or 45% 41%, from approximately $44.9 million $50.7 million for the six nine months ended June 30,
2023 September 30, 2023. The decrease was primarily attributable to a decrease in natural gas cost of $12.2 million, a decrease in volumes sold resulting in a
decrease of $1.8 million $2.4 million and a change in the value of our derivative portfolio used for hedging, which resulted in a decrease of $6.0 million.

Retail gross margin for the Retail Natural Gas Segment for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was approximately $24.2 million $29.7
million, a decrease of approximately $3.3 million $3.0 million, or 12% 9%, from approximately $27.5 million $32.7 million for the six nine months ended June 30,
2023 September 30, 2023, as indicated in the table below (in millions).

Change in volumes sold $ (1.2)(1.6)
Change in unit margin per MMBtu (2.1)(1.4)
Change in retail natural gas segment retail gross margin $ (3.3)(3.0)

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash generated from operations and borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility. Our principal liquidity requirements are to meet
our financial commitments, finance current operations, fund organic growth and/or acquisitions and service debt and pay dividends. Our liquidity requirements
fluctuate with our level of customer acquisition costs, acquisitions, collateral posting requirements on our derivative instruments portfolio, distributions, the effects of
the timing between the settlement of payables and receivables, including the effect of bad debts, weather conditions, and our general working capital needs for
ongoing operations. Estimating our liquidity requirements is highly dependent on then-current market conditions, forward prices for natural gas and electricity,
market volatility and our then existing capital structure and requirements.

We believe that cash generated from operations and our available liquidity sources will be sufficient to sustain current operations, pay dividends to the holders of
Series A Preferred Stock, and to pay required taxes. Our ability to pay dividends to the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock in the future will ultimately depend on
our RCE count, margins, profitability and cash flow, and the covenants under our Senior Credit Facility.

Liquidity Position

The following table details our available liquidity as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024:

($ in thousands) June September 30, 2024

Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,557 66,572
Senior Credit Facility Availability ) 175,661 83,935
Subordinated Debt Facility Availability (2) 25,000
Total Liquidity $ 154,218175,507

(1) Reflects amount of Letters of Credit that could be issued based on existing covenants as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.
(2) The availability of the Subordinated Facility is dependent on 'Mr. Maxwell's discretion. See “—Sources of Liquidity —Subordinated Debt Facility.”

Borrowings and related posting of letters of credit under our Senior Credit Facility are subject to material variations on a seasonal basis due to the timing of
commodity purchases to satisfy natural gas inventory requirements and to meet customer demands during periods of peak usage. Additionally, borrowings are
subject to borrowing base and covenant restrictions.

Cash Flows

Our cash flows were as follows for the respective periods (in thousands):

Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities
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Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash used in financing activities
Six Nine Months Ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 Compared to the Six Nine Months Ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities. Cash flows provided by operating activities for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 decreased September 30,
2024 increased by $6.4 million $7.6 million compared to the six nine months ended June 30, 2023 September 30, 2023. The decrease increase was primarily the
result of changes in working capital for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities. Cash flows used in investing activities decreased increased by less than $0.1 million $1.8 million for the six nine months
ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024. The decrease increase was primarily the result of decreased capital spending customer acquisitions during the six nine
months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities. Cash flows used in financing activities decreased by $7.9 million $8.9 million for the six nine months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024, primarily due to a decrease in sub-debt paydown of $15.0$20.0 million, decrease in dividends paid to Class A common stockholders of
$2.9 million, offset by an increase in net paydown of our Senior Credit Facility of $9.0$13.0 million, during the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30,
2024.

Sources of Liquidity and Capital Resources

For a description of the terms and conditions of our Senior Credit Facility and First Amendment, including descriptions of the interest rate, commitment fee,
covenants and terms of default, please see Note 9 “Debt” in the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Amended and Restated Subordinated Debt Facility

See Note 9 “Debt” for further information regarding the Subordinated Debt Facility.

Uses of Liquidity and Capital Resources

Repayment of Current Portion of Senior Credit Facility

Our Senior Credit Facility matures in June 2027, and thus, no amounts are due currently. However, due to the revolving nature of the facility, excess cash available
is generally used to reduce the balance outstanding, which at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was $93.0 million $89.0 million. The current variable interest rate
on the facility at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 was 8.59% 8.09%.

Customer Acquisitions

Our customer acquisition strategy consists of customer growth obtained through organic customer additions as well as opportunistic acquisitions. During the three
months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, we spent a total of $2.6 million $2.1 million and $1.5$1.7 million, respectively, on organic customer
acquisitions.

Capital Expenditures

Our capital requirements each year are relatively low and generally consist of minor purchases of equipment or information system upgrades and improvements.
Capital expenditures for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 included $0.7 million $1.1 million and $0.8 million $1.1 million,
respectively, related to information systems improvements.

Dividends and Distributions

For the three and six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 we paid $2.7 million and $5.4 million $8.2 million in dividends to holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we had accrued $2.7 million related to dividends to holders of the Series A Preferred Stock. This
dividend was paid on July 15, 2024 October 15, 2024. For a more detailed explanation of the Company's Series A Preferred Stock, please see Note 5 "Preferred
Stock" in the notes to our condensed consolidated financial statements.

For the full year ended December 31, 2024, taking into consideration the amount of dividends already paid and estimating future dividends using the stated most
recent dividend rate paid on the Series A Preferred Stock, we would be required to pay dividends of $10.8 million in the aggregate based on the Series A Preferred
Stock outstanding as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

On July 17, 2024 October 16, 2024, we declared a dividend in the amount of $0.75881 $0.71847 per share for the Series A Preferred Stock for the second third
quarter of 2024. Dividends on Series A Preferred Stock will be paid on October 15, 2024 January 15, 2025 to holders of record on October 1, 2024 January 1, 2025.
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Future dividends to the holders of Series A Preferred Stock are within the discretion of our Board of Directors, and will depend upon our operations, our financial
condition, capital requirements and investment opportunities, the performance of our business, cash flows, RCE counts and the margins we receive, as well as
restrictions under our Senior Credit Facility. A dividend penalty event would occur if dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock are in arrears for six or more quarterly
dividend periods, in which case the dividend rate on the Series A Preferred Stock would increase by 2.00% per annum, and the holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock would be entitled to elect two members to our Board of Directors, until the dividend penalty event is cured.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we had no material “off-balance sheet arrangements.”

Related Party Transactions

For a discussion of related party transactions, see Note 13 “Transactions with Affiliates” to Part I, Item 1 of this Report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies and estimates are described in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates” in our 2023 Form 10-K. There have been no changes to these policies and estimates since the date of our 2023 Form 10-K.

Refer to Note 2 “Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to Part |, Item 1 of this Report for a discussion on recent accounting
pronouncements.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we may become party to lawsuits, administrative proceedings and governmental investigations, including regulatory and other
matters. Except as described in Note 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” to Part I, ltem 1 of this Report, as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, management
did not believe that any of our outstanding lawsuits, administrative proceedings or investigations could result in a material adverse effect. Liabilities for loss
contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and
the amount can be reasonably estimated. For a discussion of the status of current legal and regulatory matters, see Note 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” to
Part |, Item 1 of this Report.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from changes in commodity prices and interest rates, as well as counterparty credit risk. We employ
established risk management policies and procedures to manage, measure, and limit our exposure to these risks.

Commodity Price Risk

We hedge and procure our energy requirements from various wholesale energy markets, including both physical and financial markets and through short and long-
term contracts. Our financial results are largely dependent on the margin we are able to realize between the wholesale purchase price of natural gas and electricity
plus related costs and the retail sales price we charge our customers for these commodities. We actively manage our commaodity price risk by entering into various
derivative or non-derivative instruments to hedge the variability in future cash flows from fixed-price forecasted sales and purchases of natural gas and electricity in
connection with our retail energy operations. These instruments include forwards, futures, swaps, and option contracts traded on various exchanges, such as
NYMEX and Intercontinental Exchange, or ICE, as well as over-the-counter markets. These contracts have varying terms and durations, which range from a few
days to several years, depending on the instrument. We also utilize similar derivative contracts in connection with our asset optimization activities to attempt to
generate incremental gross margin by effecting transactions in markets where we have a retail presence. Generally, any such instruments that are entered into to
support our retail electricity and natural gas business are categorized as having been entered into for non-trading purposes, and instruments entered into for any
other purpose are categorized as having been entered into for trading purposes.

Our net gain/(loss)/gain on our non-trading derivative instruments, net of cash settlements, was $10.8 million $(4.4) million and $16.1 million $8.2 million for three
months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively and $21.8 million $17.4 million and $(6.5) million $1.7 million for six nine months ended
June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

We have adopted risk management policies to measure and limit market risk associated with our fixed-price portfolio and our hedging activities. For additional
information regarding our commodity price risk and our risk management policies, see “ltem 1A—Risk Factors” in our 2023 Form 10-K.

We measure the commodity risk of our non-trading energy derivatives using a sensitivity analysis on our net open position. As of June 30, 2024 September 30,
2024, our Gas Non-Trading Fixed Price Open Position (hedges net of retail load) was a short position of 695,560592,494 MMBtu. An increase of 10% in the market
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prices (NYMEX) from their June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, levels would have decreased the fair market value of our net non-trading energy portfolio by less
than $0.1 million. $0.1 million. Likewise, a decrease of 10% in the market prices (NYMEX) from their June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, levels would have
increased the fair market value of our non-trading energy derivatives by less than $0.1 million. $0.1 million. As of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, our Electricity
Non-Trading Fixed Price Open Position (hedges net of retail load) was a short position of 141,322 97,511 MWhs. An increase of 10% in the forward market prices
from their June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, levels would have decreased the fair market value of our net non-trading energy portfolio by $0.5 million $0.7 million.
Likewise, a decrease of 10% in the forward market prices from their June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, levels would have increased the fair market value of our
non-trading energy derivatives by $0.5 million $0.7 million.

Credit Risk

In many of the utility services territories where we conduct business, Purchase of Receivables (“POR”) programs have been established, whereby the local
regulated utility purchases our receivables, and becomes responsible for billing the customer and collecting payment from the customer. This service results in
substantially all of our credit risk being with the utility and not to our end-use customer in these territories. Approximately 59% 60% and 53% 54% of our retail
revenues were derived from territories in which substantially all of our credit risk was with local regulated utility companies for the three months ended June 30,
2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 60% and 54% for six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023,, respectively, all of
which had investment grade ratings as of such date. We paid these local regulated utilities a weighted average discount of 1.2% and 1.0%, for the three months
ended June

September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and 1.2% and 1.0% for six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively of total
revenues for customer credit risk protection. In certain of the POR markets in which we operate, the utilities limit their collections exposure by retaining the ability to
transfer a delinquent account back to us for collection when collections are past due for a specified period.

If our collection efforts are unsuccessful, we return the account to the local regulated utility for termination of service. Under these service programs, we are
exposed to credit risk related to payment for services rendered during the time between when the customer is transferred to us by the local regulated utility and the
time we return the customer to the utility for termination of service, which is generally one to two billing periods. We may also realize a loss on fixed-price customers
in this scenario due to the fact that we will have already fully hedged the customer’s expected commodity usage for the life of the contract.

In non-POR markets (and in POR markets where we may choose to direct bill our customers), we manage customer credit risk through formal credit review in the
case of commercial customers, and credit score screening, deposits and disconnection for non-payment, in the case of residential customers. Economic conditions
may affect our customers’ ability to pay bills in a timely manner, which could increase customer delinquencies and may lead to an increase in bad debt expense.
Our bad debt expense for the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 2.1% 1.4% and 2.4% 1.3% of non-POR market retail revenues,
respectively and our bad debt expense for the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 and 2023 was 1.4% and 2.1% 1.8% of non-POR market
retail revenues, respectively. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Drivers of Our Business—Customer
Credit Risk” for an analysis of our bad debt expense related to non-POR markets during the six nine months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

We are exposed to wholesale counterparty credit risk in our retail and asset optimization activities. We manage this risk at a counterparty level and secure our
exposure with collateral or guarantees when needed. At June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, approximately $1.1 million $0.5 million of our total exposure of $1.6
million $0.6 million was either with a non-investment grade counterparty or otherwise not secured with collateral or a guarantee. The credit worthiness of the
remaining exposure with other customers was evaluated with no material allowance recorded at June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

Interest Rate Risk
We are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates under our variable-price debt obligations, including our Senior Credit Facility and our Series A Preferred Stock.

At June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, we were co-borrowers under the Senior Credit Facility, under which $93.0 million $89.0 million of variable rate indebtedness
was outstanding. Based on the average amount of our variable rate indebtedness outstanding during the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, a
1.0% increase in interest rates would have resulted in additional annual interest expense of approximately $0.9 million.

On July 17, 2024 October 16, 2024, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.75881 $0.71847 per share for the Series A
Preferred Stock for the second third quarter of 2024 for an aggregate amount of $2.7 million for the quarter. Based on the Series A Preferred Stock outstanding on
June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024, a 1.0% increase in interest rates would have resulted in additional dividends of $0.2 million for the quarter.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,” as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
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required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives, and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based
on this evaluation, management concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the
Exchange Act that occurred during the three months ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

See Note 12 “Commitments and Contingencies” to Part |, Item 1 of this Report, which is incorporated by reference into this Part Il, Item 1, for a description of certain
ligation, legal proceedings, and regulatory matters.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Security holders Holders of Series A Preferred Stock and potential investors in our securities Series A Preferred Stock should carefully consider the risk factors
under “ltem 1A— Risk Factors” in our 2023 Form 10-K. There There has been no material change in our risk factors from those described in the 2023 Form 10-K.
except that, as a result of the Merger, as of June 13, 2024, Mr. Maxwell and his affiliates became the owners of all of the issued and outstanding shares of the
Company's Class A common stock and Class B common stock, and there are no remaining public holders of Class A common stock. As a result, risk factors
described in the 2023 Form 10-K relating to public holders of Class A common stock are no longer applicable. Our description description of risks are not the sole
risks for investors. investors in Series A Preferred Stock. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also
may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 6. Exhibits

The exhibits required to be filed by Item 6 are set forth in the Exhibit Index included below.

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit
Exhibit Exhibit Description Form Number Filing Date SEC File No.
Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, by and among_Spark Energy,_Inc., Spark
2.1# HoldCo, LLC, Provider Power, LLC, Kevin B. Dean and Emile L. Clavet, dated as of May 3, 10-Q 2.1 5/5/2016 001-36559
2016.
Membership Interest Purchase Agreement, by and among_Spark Energy, Inc., Spark
2.2# 10-Q 2.2 5/5/2016 001-36559

2.3# 2016, by and among_Spark Energy, Inc., Spark HoldCo, LLC, Provider Power, LLC, Kevin B. 8-K 2.1 8/1/2016 001-36559

Dean and Emile L. Clavet.

Membership Interest and Stock Purchase Agreement, by and among_Spark Energy,_Inc.,

2.4# ] 10-Q 24 5/8/2017 001-36559
CenStar Energy Corp. and Verde Energy USA Holdings, LLC, dated as of May 5, 2017.
Eirst Amendment to the Membership Interest and Stock Purchase Agreement, dated July 1,
25 2017, by and among_Spark Energy, Inc., CenStar Energy Corp., and Verde Energy USA 8-K 21 71612017 001-36559
Holdings, LLC.
Agreement to Terminate Earnout Payments, effective January 12, 2018, by and among
2.6# Spark Energy,_Inc., CenStar Energy_Corp., Woden Holdings, LLC (fka Verde Energy USA 8-K 2.1 1/16/2018 001-36559

Holdings, LLC), Verde Energy USA, Inc., Thomas FitzGerald, and Anthony Menchaca.

2.7# - - 10-K 2.7 3/9/2018 001-36559
National Gas & Electric, LLC.

Asset Purchase Agreement, by and between Spark HoldCo, LLC, Starion Energy Inc.,
2.8# ) A 8-K 2.1 10/25/2018 001-36559
Starion Energy NY Inc., and Starion Energy PA Inc., dated October 19, 2018.
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2.9 Starion Energy Inc., Starion Energy NY Inc., and Starion Energy PA, Inc., effective May 1, 10-Q 2.9 8/5/2020 001-36559
2020.
2.10" Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of December 29, 2023, by and among_Retailco, 8-K 2.1 1/2/2024 001-36559
LLC, NuRetailco LLC and Via Renewables,_Inc.
Composite Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Via Renewables, Inc., as
3.1 10-K 3.1 2/29/2024 001-36559
amended through March 21, 2023
3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Via Renewables, Inc 8-K 3.2 8/9/2021 001-36559
Certificate of Designations of Rights and Preferences of 8.75% Series A Fixed-to-Floating
&3 ) 8-A 5 3/14/2017 001-36559
Rate Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock
4.1* Description of Securities
Eirst Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 28, 2024, by and among_Via
Renewables, Inc., Spark HoldCo, LLC, and the other subsidiaries of Via Renewables, Inc.
10.1# and Spark HoldCo, LLC party thereto, as co-borrowers, Woodforest National Bank, as 8-K 10.1 6/28/2024 001-36559
administrative agent, swing_bank, swap bank, issuing_bank, joint-lead arranger, sole
bookrunner and syndication agent, and the other financial institutions party thereto.
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Holdings, LLC.
Agreement to Terminate Earnout Payments, effective January 12, 2018, by and among
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2020.
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Composite Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Via Renewables, Inc., as
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administrative agent, swing_bank, swap bank, issuing_bank, joint-lead arranger, sole

10.2 10.2  (Note No. 8), dated June 28, 2024, by and among_Via

Renewables, Inc., Spark HoldCo, LLC and Retailco, LLC.

10.3
10.3

Asset Purchase Agreement by and between Tomorrow 8
10.3 Energy Corp, as Seller, and Spark HoldCo, LLC, as Buyer, K 2.1 10/25/2024

dated as of October 22, 2024

10.4*
31.1*
31.1*
31.1*
31.2*
31.2*
31.2*
32**
32**
32**
101.INS*
101.INS*
101.INS*
101.SCH*
101.SCH*
101.SCH*
101.CAL*
101.CAL*
101.CAL*
101.LAB*
101.LAB*
101.LAB*
101.PRE*
101.PRE*
101.PRE*
101.DEF*
101.DEF*
101.DEF*
104*
104*
104*

* Filed herewith
** Furnished herewith

Eirst Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated June 28, 2024, by and among_Via
Renewables, Inc., Spark HoldCo, LLC, and the other subsidiaries of Via Renewables, Inc.
10.1# and Spark HoldCo, LLC party thereto, as co-borrowers, Woodforest National Bank, as

001-
10.2  6/28/2024
36559

001-
36559

2 0 - & 10.2 6/28/2024
K 36

8-K 10.1 6/28/2024 001-36559

28, 2024, by and among_Via Renewables,
Inc., Spark HoldCo, LLC and Retailco, LLC.

A The disclosure letters contemplated by this Agreement and Plan of Merger and the Exhibits to this Agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of
Regulation S-K. The registrant hereby agrees to supplementally furnish to the SEC upon request any omitted disclosure letters or exhibits to the Agreement and

Plan of Merger.
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# Certain schedules, exhibits and annexes have been omitted in reliance on Item 601 (a)(5) of Regulation S-K, the registrant agrees to furnish supplementally a
copy of any omitted schedule, exhibit or annex to the Commission upon request

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Via Renewables, Inc.

August 1, October 31, 2024 /sl Mike Barajas

Mike Barajas

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 4.1

DESCRIPTION AMENDMENT NO. 3
TO
THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT
OF SECURITIES REGISTERED UNDER SECTION 12 OF THE EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
SPARK HOLDCO, LLC

The following summary of This AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO THIRD AMENDED AND RESTATED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY AGREEMENT (this
“Amendment”), and the Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (the “Third Restated LLC Agreement”), as amended or restated from
time to time, including by this Amendment, is effective June 13, 2024, by and among SPARK HOLDCO, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”),
and each other Person who is or at any time becomes a Member in accordance with the terms of the capital stock Agreement and the Act. Capitalized terms used
herein and not otherwise defined have the respective meanings set forth in Section 1.1 of Via Renewables, Inc.the Third Restated LLC Agreement and Section 1 of
this Amendment.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2024, the Managing Member consummated a merger (the “Company” or “we,” “us,” or “ourMerger’) is not meant to be
complete contemplated by that certain Agreement and is qualified Plan of Merger, dated as of December 29, 2023, by reference to the relevant provisions of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the “and between Retailco, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“DGCL”) and the complete text of our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation (our “certificate of incorporation Parent”), the certificate NuRetailco LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and
wholly owned subsidiary of designation for the Series A Preferred Stock (the “Parent (“certificate of designation”) and the second amended and restated bylaws
of the Company (our “bylaws”). For a complete description of our capital stock, refer to our certificate of incorporation, the certificate of designation and bylaws, all of
which are incorporated by reference as exhibits to this report.

We have one class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange ActMerger Sub”), our 8.75%
Series A Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”). and the Managing Member;
Series A Preferred Stock
Our board of directors has adoptedWHEREAS, as a certificate of designations to our certificate of incorporation establishing the Series A Preferred Stock. The
certificate of designations initially authorized 4,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock. Our board of directors may authorize and issue additional shares of
Series A Preferred Stock, from time to time, without obtaining consentresult of the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock. The foregoing provides a summary
of certain terms and provisions Merger, Parent owns all of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Maturity. The Series A Preferred Stock has no maturity date, issued and we are not required to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock. Accordingly, the Series A
Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless we decide to redeem it pursuant to our optional redemption right or our special optional redemption right
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in connection with a Change of Control, or under the circumstances set forth below under “—Limited Conversion Rights Upon a Change of Control” and elect to
convert such Series A Preferred Stock. We are not required to set aside funds to redeem the Series A Preferred Stock.

Dividends. Holders of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, out of funds legally available for
the payment of dividends, cumulative cash dividends payable on the 15th day of each April, July, October and January (each a “Dividend Payment Date,” and each
such quarterly period, a “Dividend Period”); provided that if any Dividend Payment Date is not a Business Day, then the dividend which would otherwise have been
payable on that Dividend Payment Date may be paid on the next succeeding Business Day, and no interest, additional dividends or other sums will accrue on the
amount so payable for the period from and after that Dividend Payment Date to that next succeeding Business Day. Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock
accrue daily and are cumulative from, and including, the date of original issue. “Business Day” means any day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, that is neither a
legal holiday nor a day on which banking institutions in New York, New York are authorized or required by law, regulation or executive order to close.

Dividend Rate. Holders of shares of the Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, out of funds legally
available for the payment of dividends, cumulative cash dividends at an annual rate of 8.75%, based on the $25.00 liquidation preference per annum (the “Eixed
Dividend Rate”) during the Fixed Rate Period (as defined below). The Fixed Dividend Rate shall accrue from, and including, the date of original issuance to, but not
including, April 15, 2022 (the “Fixed Rate Period”). On and after April 15, 2022 (the “Floating_Rate Period”), dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock shall accrue
at an annual rate equal to the sum of (a) Three-Month LIBOR (if it
#102398892v2

then exists), or an alternative reference rate as of the applicable determination date, as calculated on each applicable date of determination and (b) 6.578%, based
on the $25.00 liquidation preference per share of Series A Preferred Stock (the “Eloating Dividend Rate”). Following the cessation of the publication of U.S. LIBOR
on June 30, 2023, we use Three Month CME Term SOFR plus a tenor spread of 0.26161 percent (or 26.161 bps) to calculate the dividend rate on the Series A
Preferred Stock pursuant to the rules of the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act.

Ranking; Liquidation Preference. The Series A Preferred Stock, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up, ranks: (i)
senior to all of our Managing Member’s Class A common stock, par value $0.01$0.01 per share (our (the “Class A Common Stock”) and any junior stock; (ii) equal
to any parity stock; (iii) junior to all senior stock; and (iv) junior to all of our existing and future indebtedness. If declared dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock
are not paid on an applicable Dividend Payment Date, we will not pay a dividend on any parity stock or junior stock until all accrued and unpaid dividends on the
Series A Preferred Stock have been paid.

Restrictions on Dividends. No dividend may be declared or paid or set apart for payment on any junior securities (other than a dividend payable solely in junior
securities or cash in lieu of fractional junior securities) unless full cumulative dividends have been or contemporaneously are being paid or provided for on all
outstanding Series A Preferred Stock and any parity stock through the most recent respective Dividend Payment Date.

Optional Redemption. On and after April 15, 2022, we may, at our option, upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days written notice, redeem the Series A
Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, at any time or from time to time, for cash at a redemption price of $25.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends
thereon to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption. If we elect to redeem any shares of Series A Preferred Stock as described in this paragraph, we may use
any available cash to pay the redemption price.

Special Optional Redemption. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, provided no limiting document may prohibit it, we may, at our option, upon not less
than 30 days nor more than 60 days’ written notice, redeem the Series A Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, within 120 days after the first date on which such
Change of Control occurred, for cash at a redemption price of $25.00 per share, plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends thereon to, but not including, the date
fixed for redemption. If, prior to the Change of Control Conversion Date (as defined below under “—Limited Conversion Rights Upon a Change of Control”), we have
provided notice of our election to redeem some or all of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock (whether pursuant to our optional redemption right described above
under “—Optional Redemption” or this special optional redemption right), the holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock will not have the Change of Control
Conversion Right (as defined and described below under “—Limited Conversion Rights Upon a Change of Control”) with respect to the shares called for redemption.
If we elect to redeem any shares of the Series A Preferred Stock as described in this paragraph, we may use any available cash to pay the redemption price.

A “Change of Control” is deemed to occur when, after the original issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock, the following have occurred and are continuing:

« the direct or indirect sale, lease, transfer, conveyance or other disposition (other than by way of merger, arrangement, amalgamation or consolidation), in one
or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of the properties or assets taken as a whole, to any “person” (as that term is used in Section 13(d)
(3) of the Exchange Act); or

« the consummation of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any merger, arrangement, amalgamation or
consolidation), the result of which is that (a) any “person” (as defined above) becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of more
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than 50% of the total voting power of all of our Class A Common Stock and Class B common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Class B
Common common Stock” and, together with the Class A Common Stock, the “Common Stock”) entitled; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Parent's ownership of the Common Stock, the Managing Member desires to vote generallyamend Exhibit A of the Third
Restated LLC Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto do hereby amend the Third Restated LLC Agreement in the election of our directors, measured by voting power
rather than number of shares of Common Stock or (b) any person that is a holder following respects:

Section 1. Definitions.

(a) Section 1.1 of the Class B Common Stock becomes Third Restated LLC Agreement is hereby amended to add or restate, as applicable, the beneficial
owner, directly or indirectly, of more than 75% of the total voting power of all of our Common Stock entitled to vote generally following definitions:

“Amendment’ is defined in the election of our directors, measured by voting power rather than number of shares of Common Stock; and provided, that such
person will be deemed preamble to have beneficial ownership of all securities that such person has the right to acquire, whether such right is currently
exercisable or is exercisable only upon the occurrence of a subsequent condition. Amendment.

Conversion, Exchange and Preemptive Rights. Except as described under “—Limited Conversion Rights Upon a Change of Control,” the Series A Preferred
Stock will not be subject to preemptive rights or be convertible into or exchangeable for any other securities or property at the option of the holder.

Limited Conversion Rights Upon a Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, each holder of shares of Series A Preferred Stock will
have the right (unless, prior to the change of control conversion date, we have provided or provide irrevocable notice of our election to redeem the Series A
Preferred Stock as described above under “—Optional Redemption,” or “—Special Option Redemption”) to convert some or all of the shares of Series A Preferred
Stock held by such holder on the change of control conversion date, into the common stock conversion consideration, which is equal to the lesser of:

« the quotient obtained by dividing (i) the sum of the $25.00 liquidation preference per share of Series A Preferred Stock plus the amount of any accumulated
and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) to, but not including, the change of control conversion date (unless the change of control conversion date is
after a record date for a Series A Preferred Stock dividend payment and prior to the corresponding Dividend Payment Date, in which case no additional
amount for such accumulated and unpaid dividend will be included in this sum) by (ii) the common stock price (such quotient, the “Conversion
Rate Assumed Tax Liability”); and
means,

¢ 0.73394 shares of Class A Common Stock, subject to certain adjustments (the “Share Cap”).

The certificate of designations initially designated a Share Cap of 1.83482, but the Share Cap is subject to pro rata adjustments for any share splits (including
those effected pursuant to a distribution of Common Stock), subdivisions or combinations (in each case, a “Share Split”) with respect to the Class A Common Stock
asfollows: the adjusted Share Cap as the result of a Share Split will be the number of shares of Class A Common Stock that is equivalent to the product obtained by
multiplying (i) the Share Cap in effect immediately prior to such Share Split by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock
outstanding after giving effect to such Share Split and the denominator of which is the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such
Share Split.

The original Share Cap of 1.83482, as adjusted for the Company’s 2-to-1 forward split in June 2017, and the 5-to-1 reverse split in March 2023, is 0.73394.

In the case of a Change of Control pursuant to which our Class A Common Stock will be converted into alternative form consideration, a holder of Series A
Preferred Stock will receive upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Stock the kind and amount of alternative form consideration which such holder would have
owned or been entitled to receive upon the Change of Control had such holder held a number of shares of our Class A Common Stock equal to the common stock
conversion consideration immediately prior to the effective time of the Change of Control.
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Notwithstanding (a) with respect to any taxable year beginning before 2020, an amount equal to

(i) the foregoing, cumulative amount of federal, state and local income taxes (including any applicable estimated taxes), determined taking into
account the character of income and loss allocated utilizing the highest effective marginal combined federal, state and local tax rate that is applicable
to the Members, due from the Members in all prior taxable years and that the Managing Member estimates as of such Tax Distribution Date would be
due from the Members in such taxable year,

(1) assuming the Members earned solely the items of income, gain, deduction, loss, and/or credit allocated to it pursuant to Section
4.3, and

(2) after taking proper account of loss carryforwards available to the Members resulting from losses allocated to the Members by the
Company, to the extent not taken into account in prior periods, minus

(ii) prior distributions made pursuant to Section 5.2(a)(i), and

(b) with respect to taxable years beginning after 2019, an amount equal to
(i) the cumulative amount of federal, state and local income taxes determined pursuant to (a)(i), plus

(i) an amount equal to the cumulative amount of taxable income of the Members in all prior taxable years or portions thereof up to and
including the first taxable year beginning after 2019 multiplied by an assumed tax rate equal to the highest effective combined federal, state and local
tax rate that is applicable to any Member, determined taking into account the character of income and loss allocated to the Members, and that the
Managing Member estimates as of each Tax Distribution Date,

(1) assuming the Members earned solely the items of income, gain, deduction, loss, and/or credit allocated to it pursuant to Section
4.3, and

(2) after taking proper account of loss carryforwards available to the Members resulting from losses allocated to the Members by the
Company, to the extent not taken into account in prior periods, minus

(iii) prior distributions made pursuant to Section 5.2(a)(i); provided, however, that in calculating Assumed Tax Liability, all items of income and
gain allocated to the Members pursuant to Section 4.3 with respect to items of income and gain allocated to the Members pursuant to Section
4.1(a) shall be excluded. For purposes of determining the Assumed Tax Liability, adjustments by reason of Sections 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code
shall be taken into account.

“Special Assumed Tax Liability” means, with respect to any taxable year, an amount equal to

(a) the cumulative amount of federal, state and local income taxes (including any applicable estimated taxes), determined taking into account the
character of income and loss allocated utilizing and applying the effective combined federal, state and local tax rate that is applicable to the Members, due
from the Members in all prior taxable years and that the Managing Member estimates as of such Tax Distribution Date would be due from the Members in
such taxable year, assuming the Members earned solely the items of income and gain allocated to the Members pursuant to Section 4.3 with respect to
items of income and gain allocated to the Members pursuant to Section 4.1(a), minus

(b) prior distributions made pursuant to Section 5.2(a)(ii). For purposes of determining the Special Assumed Tax Liability of the Members,
adjustments by reason of Sections 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code shall be taken into account.

“Third Restated LLC Agreement’ is defined in the preamble to the Amendment.

(b) The definitions of “Target Distribution,” Tax Receivable Agreement’ and “TRA Payment Date” are deleted in their entirety.

Section 2. Amendment and Restatement of Article V. Article V of the Third Restated LLC Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as

follows:
ARTICLE V
DISTRIBUTIONS
Section 5.1 Distributions.
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(a) Distributions. To the extent permitted by applicable Law and hereunder, distributions to the holders of shares Common Units may
be declared by the Managing Member out of funds legally available therefor in such amounts and on such terms (including the payment dates of such
distributions) as the Managing Member shall determine using such record date as the Managing Member may designate; such distribution shall be made
to the holders of Common Units as of the close of business on such record date (i) on a pro rata basis (except that repurchases or redemptions made in
accordance with Section 3.1(f) or payments made in accordance with Section 6.4 need not be on a pro rata basis), in accordance with the number of
Common Units owned by each Member as of the close of business on such record date or (ii) other than on a pro rata basis in an amount determined by
the Managing Member in its sole discretion; provided, however, that the Managing Member shall have the obligation to make distributions as set forth in
Sections3.1(f), 5.2 and 6.4; and provided further that, notwithstanding any other provision in this agreement to the contrary, no distributions shall be made
to any Member to the extent such distribution would render the Company insolvent or violate applicable Law. For purposes of the foregoing sentence,
insolvency means the inability of the Company to meet its payment obligations when due. Promptly following the designation of a record date and the
declaration of a distribution pursuant to this Section 5.1, the Managing

Member shall give notice to each holder of Common Units of the record date, the amount and the terms of the distribution and the payment date thereof.

(b) Successors. For purposes of determining the amount of distributions, each Member shall be treated as having made the Capital
Contributions and as having received the distributions made to or received by its predecessors in respect of any of such Member’s Units.

(c) Distributions In-Kind. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any distributions may be made in cash or in kind, or partly
in cash and partly in kind, as determined by the Managing Member. To the extent that the Company distributes property in-kind to the Members, the
Company shall be treated as making a distribution equal to the Fair Market Value of such property for purposes of Section 5.1(a) and such property shall
be treated as if it were sold for an amount equal to its Fair Market Value. Any resulting gain or loss shall be allocated to the Member’s Capital Accounts in
accordance with Section 4.1 and Section 4.2.

Section 5.2  Certain Distributions and Advances. Subject to the availability of funds and to any restrictions contained in any agreement to
which the Company is bound,

(@) On each Tax Distribution Date, the Company shall, make distributions

(i) to the Members holding Common Units (1) pro rata in proportion to their respective Common Units in an amount sufficient
to cause the Members to receive a distribution of cash equal to its Assumed Tax Liability, if any, or (2) other than on a pro rata basis in an amount
determined by the Managing Member in its sole discretion; and

(i) to the Members in an amount sufficient to cause the Members to receive a distribution of cash equal to its Special
Assumed Tax Liability, if any.

(b) On or immediately prior to each Quarterly Distribution Date, the Company shall make distributions to the Members pro rata in
proportion to their respective Common Units in an amount determined by the Managing Member in its sole discretion, to be sufficient to cause the
Members to receive a distribution of cash equal to the dividend declared by SEI with respect to Class A Stock for such Quarterly Distribution Date.

(c) If the cumulative amount of actual federal, state and local income taxes due from a Member for the current taxable year and all
prior taxable years as of the due date for the Member’s federal income tax return for such taxable year exceeds the sum of the cumulative amount of
distributions pursuant to Sections 5.1 and 5.2(a) and any Tax Advances (as defined below) made to a Member through such date, the Company shall, to
the extent permitted by applicable Law, but subject to the Act, the availability of funds and any restrictions contained in any agreement to which the
Company is bound, make advances to the Member in an amount equal to such excess (a “Tax Advance”). Any such Tax Advance shall
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be treated as an advance against and, thus, shall reduce (without duplication), any future distributions that would otherwise be made to the Member
pursuant to Section 5.1.

(d) Immediately prior to each Series A Preferred Stock will not have Quarterly Distribution Date, the Change Company shall make a
cash distribution to SEI in respect of Control Conversion Right if the acquiror has shares listed or quoted on the NYSE, the NYSE American or NASDAQ or
listed or quoted on an exchange or quotation system that is a successor to the NYSE, the NYSE American or NASDAQ, and the Series A Preferred Stock
becomes convertible into or exchangeable for such acquiror’s listed shares upon a subsequent Change Units in an amount equal to the amount of
Control cash dividends to be paid by SEI in respect of the acquiror.

Voting Rights. Holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock generally have no voting rights. If, however, either (i) we have not paid dividends on the
Series A Preferred Stock for six or more Dividend Periods, whether or not consecutive, or (ii) we fail to maintain the listing of the such Series A Preferred Stock
on Quarterly Distribution Date.

(e) Upon receipt of the NYSE, the NYSE American or NASDAQ, or on an exchange or quotation system that is a successor to
the NYSE, the NYSE American or NASDAQ, for a period written consent of 180 consecutive days, then holders of Series A Preferred Stock, together with
the holders of any Parity Stock upon which like voting rights have been conferred and are exercisable, will be entitled to elect two additional directors to
our Board of Directors.

Unless we have received the affirmative vote or consentall of the holders of Common Units, the Company may make a cash distribution to Members in
respect of its Common Units in an amount determined at least two-thirds the sole discretion of the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock, voting Managing Member
without making a corresponding distribution to other Members holding Common Units.

Section 5.3 Distribution Upon Withdrawal. No withdrawing Member shall be entitled to receive any distribution or the value of such Member’s
Interest in the Company as a single class, we may result of withdrawal from the Company prior to the liquidation of the Company, except as specifically

provided in this Agreement.

Section 3. Amendment and Restatement of Exhibit A. Exhibit A to the Third Restated LLC Agreement is hereby amended and restated as set forth on
Exhibit A to this Amendment.

Section 4. Entire Agreement. This Amendment, together with all Exhibits and Schedules hereto and to the Third Restated LLC Agreement, and all other
agreements referenced therein and herein, constitute the entire agreement among the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior
and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, negotiations and discussions, whether oral or written, of the parties and there are no warranties,
representations or other agreements between the parties in connection with the subject matter hereof except as specifically set forth herein and therein.

Section 5. Governing_Law. This Amendment, the legal relations between the parties and any Action, whether contractual or non-contractual, instituted by
any party with respect to matters arising under or growing out of or in connection with or in respect of this Amendment or the Third Restated LLC Agreement shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with the Laws of the State of Delaware applicable to contracts made and performed in such State and without regard
to conflicts of law doctrines, except to the extent that certain matters are preempted by federal Law or are governed as a matter of controlling Law by the Law of the
jurisdiction of organization of the respective parties.

Section 6. Headings. The descriptive headings of the Articles, Sections and subsections of this Amendment are for convenience only and do not (i)
adopt constitute a part of this Amendment or the Third Restated LLC Agreement.

Section 7. Counterparts. This Amendment and any amendment to our certificate hereto or any other agreement (or document) delivered pursuant hereto
may be executed in one or more counterparts and by different parties in separate counterparts. All of incorporation relating such counterparts shall constitute one
and the same agreement (or other document) and shall become effective (unless otherwise provided therein) when one or more counterparts have been signed by
each party and delivered to the Series A Preferred Stock to affect materially and adversely the rights, privileges, restrictions or conditions of the Series A Preferred
Stock, or (ii) authorize, create or increase the authorized number of shares of Senior Stock.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of Our Certificate of Incorporation, Our Bylaws and Delaware Law

Some provisions of Delaware law, and our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws described below, contains provisions that could make acquisitions of us by
means of a tender offer, a proxy contest or otherwise; or removal of our incumbent officers and directors more difficult. These provisions may also have the effect of
preventing changes in our management. It is possible that these provisions could make it more difficult to accomplish or could deter transactions that stockholders
may otherwise consider to be in their best interest or in our best interests, including transactions that might result in a premium over the market price for our shares.

These provisions, summarized below, are expected to discourage coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids. These provisions are also
designed to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to first negotiate with us. We believe that the benefits of increased protection and our potential
ability to negotiate with the proponent of an unfriendly or unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure us outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging these
proposals because, among other things, negotiation of these proposals could result in an improvement of their terms.
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Delaware law party.. In our certificate of incorporation, we have elected not to be subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL) regulating corporate
takeovers until the date on which W. Keith Maxwell Il no longer beneficially owns in the aggregate more than fifteen percent of the outstanding Common Stock. On
and after such date, we will be subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL.

In general, those provisions prohibit a Delaware corporation, including those whose securities are listed for trading on the NASDAQ Global Select Market, from
engaging in any business combination with any interested shareholder for a period of three years following the date that the shareholder became an interested
shareholder, unless:

« the transaction is approved by the board of directors before the date the interested stockholder attained that status;

4
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e upon consummation IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested
stockholder owned at least 85% parties hereto has caused this Amendment to be executed by its duly authorized officers as of the voting stock of the
corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced; or day and year first above written.

COMPANY:

SPARK HOLDCO, LLC

By: [s/ Mike Barajas
Name: Mike Barajas
Title: Chief Financial Officer

« on or after such time the business combination is approved by the board of directors and authorized at a meeting of stockholders by at least two-thirds of the
outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may delay or discourage transactions involving an actual
or potential change in control or change in our management, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares, or
transactions that our stockholders might otherwise deem to be in their best interests.

Among other things, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws:

*MANAGING MEMBERSProvide for our board of directors to be divided into three classes of directors, with each
class as nearly equal in number as possible, serving staggered three year terms. Our staggered board may tend to
discourage a third party from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of us, because it generally
makes it more difficult for stockholders to replace a majority of the directors. :

VIA RENEWABLES, INC.

By: [s/ Mike Barajas

Name: Mike Barajas

Title: Chief Financial Officer

¢ Provide that the authorized number of directors may be changed only by resolution of the board of directors.

« Provide that all vacancies in our board, including newly created directorships, may, except as otherwise required
by law or, if applicable, the rights of holders of a series of preferred stock, be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority
of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum.

RETAILCO, LLC

*By: Provide our board of directors the ability to authorize undesignated preferred stock. This ability makes it
possible for our board of directors to issue, without shareholder approval, preferred stock with voting_or other rights or
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« Provide that at any time after the first date upon which/s/ W. Keith Maxwell Il no longer beneficially owns more than fifty percent of the outstanding

Common Stock, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders must be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting of stockholders
and may not be effected by any consent in writing in lieu of a meeting of such stockholders, subject to the rights of the holders of any series of preferred
stock with respect to such series (prior to such time, such actions may be taken without a meeting by written consent of holders of the outstanding stock
having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting).

« Provide that at any time after the first date upon which Name: W. Keith Maxwell Il no longer beneficially owns more than fifty percent of the outstanding
Common Stock, special meetings of our stockholders may only be called by the board of directors, the chief executive officer or the chairman of the board
(prior to such time, special meetings may also be called by our Secretary at the request of holders of record of fifty percent of the outstanding Common
Stock).

Title: Chief Executive Officer

5
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* Provide that our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may be amended by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of our outstanding stock
entitled to vote thereon.EXHIBIT A
MEMBERS AND INTERESTS
« Provide that our bylaws can be amended by the board of directors.

« Establish advance notice procedures with regard to shareholder proposals relating to the nomination of candidates for election as directors or new
business to be brought before meetings of our stockholders. These procedures provide that notice of shareholder proposals must be timely given in writing
to our corporate secretary prior to the meeting at which the action is to be taken. These requirements may preclude stockholders from bringing matters
before the stockholders at an annual or special meeting.

« Provide that we renounce any interest in existing and future investments in other entities by, or the business opportunities of, NuDevco Partners, LLC,
NuDevco Partners Holdings, LLC and W. Keith Maxwell lll, or any of their officers, directors, agents, stockholders, members, partners, affiliates and
subsidiaries (other than our directors who are presented business opportunities in their capacity as our directors or officers) and that they have no obligation
to offer us those investments or opportunities.

Percentage of Class .
of Common Units S .

Members Common Units Preferred Units

Via Renewables, Inc. 3,323,329 45.4% 3,567,543

Retailco, LLC 4,000,000 54.6%

Total 7,323,329 100.0% 100.0%
6
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF

1934, AS AMENDED
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1, W. Keith Maxwell 11, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report (the “report”) on Form 10-Q of Via Renewables, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’'s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2024 October 31, 2024

[s/ W. Keith Maxwell 11

W. Keith Maxwell 111

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

EXHIBIT 31.2
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13A-14(A) AND RULE 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934, AS AMENDED

I, Mike Barajas, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report (the “report”) on Form 10-Q of Via Renewables, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: August 1, 2024 October 31, 2024

[s/ Mike Barajas

Mike Barajas

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
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EXHIBIT 32

Certification by the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 September 30, 2024 (the “Report”) of Via Renewables, Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, W. Keith Maxwell 11I, Principal Executive Officer
of the Company and Mike Barajas, Principal Accounting and Financial Officer of the Company, each certify, pursuant 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to his knowledge:

1. This Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: August 1, 2024 October 31, 2024

[s/ W. Keith Maxwell [l1

W. Keith Maxwell 11l

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Is/ Mike Barajas

Mike Barajas

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
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DISCLAIMER

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE REFINITIV CORPORATE DISCLOSURES DELTA REPORT™ IS A COMPARISON OF TWO
FINANCIALS PERIODIC REPORTS. THERE MAY BE MATERIAL ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR INACCURACIES IN THE REPORT INCLUDING
THE TEXT AND THE COMPARISON DATA AND TABLES. IN NO WAY DOES REFINITIV OR THE APPLICABLE COMPANY ASSUME ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER DECISIONS MADE BASED UPON THE INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THIS REPORT.
USERS ARE ADVISED TO REVIEW THE APPLICABLE COMPANY'S ACTUAL SEC FILINGS BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT OR OTHER
DECISIONS.

©2024, Refinitiv. All rights reserved. Patents Pending.
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